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Hitachi Chemical Group Identity
The “Hitachi Chemical Group Identity” is the globally shared structure of our philosophy and values,
established to strengthen our group’s teamwork beyond regions and business fields.
Hitachi Chemical has formed its Mission and Values over its 100-year history.
Based on these principles, we formulated the Hitachi Chemical Group Vision to express an image of
the company we aim to be.

Mission
Contribute to society through the development of
superior technologies and products.

Founding Spirits
Pioneering
Spirit

A purposeful approach to one’s work based on individual initiative, to create new business by pursuing novel,
new goals. This spirit is manifested in a keen desire to
be at the forefront of technology and the top of our
chosen fields of expertise. These objectives are achieved
by promoting the limitless potential of each individual
member of Hitachi Chemical.

Sincerity

To approach issues openly and honestly, without drawing false distinction between oneself and others. “Sincerity” is the spirit that inspires the confidence that
society has placed in us.

Harmony

The willingness to respect the opinions of others and
discuss matters in a manner that is thorough and frank,
but fair and impartial, and once a conclusion has been
reached, to cooperate and work together to achieve a
common goal.

MISSION

VALUES

VISION

Hitachi Chemical Group Vision
With a pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas, we
develop innovative solutions beyond the boundaries of
chemistry, delivering “wonders” that exceed the expectations of customers and society.
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“Working On Wonders” is the Hitachi Chemical
Group’s corporate slogan.
We operate in four key business fields: Telecommunications & Displays, Environment & Energy,
Automobiles & Transportation Infrastructure, and
Life Sciences.
Hitachi Chemical’s products and technologies
help resolve complex societal issues. We foster
continuous transformation at the business, organizational, and personal levels. Our aim, in line with
our Group Vision: Deliver “wonders” that surpass
society’s and our customers’ expectations by
creating new value transcending chemistry.
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With its Annual Report in 2012, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. began issuing annual reports in a reworked format incorporating the traditional type (covering
financial results and management and business strategies) and the corporate
social responsibility (CSR) report. Materiality analysis (see page 23 for details)
was used to select content for inclusion in this report, and it was prepared with
reference to the integrated reporting framework published by the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC). It is designed to convey the Group’s
activities over the past fiscal year in an accessible manner and is augmented by
more detailed information on our website.
This year’s report is published in Japanese and English, and PDF versions
in both languages are available on our website. The Financial Section of the
English version contains additional financial information; for financial data in
Japanese, readers are directed to the Company’s Securities Report. Note that
Hitachi Chemical has made voluntary application of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) starting with the consolidated financial statements
in the Securities Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. The date of
transition to IFRS is April 1, 2013. Figures for the year ended March 31, 2014,
are also presented based on IFRS.
Note also that beginning with this fiscal year, to enhance the credibility
of the nonfinancial data we disclose on our CSR website, we have engaged
KPMG AZSA Sustainability Co., Ltd. to provide assurance. For further details,
we invite you to visit the CSR website.
We hope that through this report, our valued stakeholders will gain a clear
understanding of Group initiatives based on the Hitachi Chemical Group
Identity—our globally shared philosophy and value framework.
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Organizations Covered
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 74 consolidated subsidiaries.
When the Hitachi Chemical Group as a whole is indicated, the terms “Hitachi
Chemical,” “the Hitachi Chemical Group,” “the Group” and “consolidated” are
used. The terms “the Company” and “non-consolidated” refer to Hitachi Chemical
Co., Ltd.

Reporting Period
Fiscal year 2014 (April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015)
This report also contains information regarding events of particular importance that
have occurred prior to or after fiscal year 2014. Please note that “fiscal year” and
“FY” refer to accounting years from April 1 to March 31 of the following year.

Guidelines Consulted
International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) Integrated Reporting Framework,
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines Version 4.0
(G4), Ministry of the Environment of Japan Environmental Reporting Guidelines
(2012 edition), and Environmental Accounting Guidelines (2005 edition).
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Forward-looking Statements
In addition to information of material fact regarding the past and present activities
of Hitachi Chemical, this report contains forward-looking statements concerning
future plans and forecasts. Forward-looking statements are assumptions and judgments based on information available at the time of publication. Therefore, future
results of business activities and events may differ from forward-looking statements
due to changes in a variety of factors.

45 Financial Section
Inclusion in socially responsible investment indices
Hitachi Chemical is included in socially responsible investment indices in Japan and overseas in recognition of the Group’s sustainability
activities and proactive stance in disclosing information. Details are
on page 38.

IR Website
http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/ir/index.html
Financial
Information

Hitachi Chemical’s
Information Disclosure
Hitachi Chemical communicates
on its overall corporate activities
including CSR, through its Annual Report. It also conveys a wider
range of detailed, timely information via its website.

(Japanese)

Annual Report
Contains annual information that tells our story
with plot focusing on
materiality based around
Hitachi Chemical’s value
creation process

Nonfinancial
Information

Business Report
for Domestic
Shareholders
Half-yearly report sent
to shareholders in Japan

(Japanese)

Securities Report
Legal disclosure
document stipulated by
Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act

(Japanese)

Company Brochure
Provides an overview
of Hitachi Chemical’s
businesses and products

Technical Report
Gives detailed information
on Hitachi Chemical’s
technologies

CSR Website
http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/index.html
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At a Glance

Providing Value to Stakeholders
Fiscal years of Hitachi Chemical and its consolidated subsidiaries run from April 1 to March 31 of the following year.

Business
JGAAP
FY2010

FY2011

FY2012

IFRS
FY2013

FY2014

FY2013

FY2014

Consolidated fiscal year
Net sales (Revenue)* (Millions of yen)

497,452 473,069 464,655 493,766 533,955

Overseas share of net sales (Revenue)* (%)

488,725 525,061

43.4

42.4

46.7

50.6

52.8

51.1

53.7

Operating income (Millions of yen)

43,471

24,495

23,559

27,775

35,144

36,569

29,226

Net income (Millions of yen)

18,943

16,427

18,818

24,103

21,101

29,144

22,867

Capital expenditures (Millions of yen)

30,432

37,347

46,698

33,492

26,643

31,935

26,620

R&D expenses (Millions of yen)

26,382

25,680

25,534

26,234

26,920

26,234

26,920

44,015

42,072

47,931

51,000

34,484

50,357

34,009

Cash flows
Cash flow from operating activities
(Millions of yen)

Cash flow from investing activities

(35,748) (67,202) (53,182) (37,088) (28,499)

(Millions of yen)

Cash flow from financing activities

(37,099) (22,258)

(6,823)

4,611

(2,867)

(3,028) (11,107)

(2,374) (16,874)

96,775

76,318

73,978

87,652

88,997

87,652

88,997

Operating margin (Operating income to
revenue)* (%)

8.7

5.2

5.1

5.6

6.6

7.5

5.6

Net margin (Net income to revenue)* (%)

3.8

3.5

4.0

4.9

4.0

6.0

4.4

Return on equity (Return on equity attributable
to owners of the parent)* (ROE) (%)

7.0

5.9

6.4

7.6

6.1

9.9

6.8

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

4.4

3.8

4.1

4.9

4.0

6.1

4.4

Debt/Equity ratio (Debt/Equity attributable
to owners of the parent ratio)* (DER) (Times)

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

(Millions of yen)

Cash and cash equivalents at fiscal year-end
(Millions of yen)

Value indicators

*Terms in parentheses are used for IFRS.
Notes: 1. Hitachi Chemical has made voluntary application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) starting with the consolidated financial
statements in the Securities Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.
2. Consolidated financial statement information based on JGAAP and IFRS is provided for fiscal year 2013 and fiscal year 2014.

Net Sales (Revenue)*/Overseas
Share of Net Sales (Revenue)*

Operating Income/Operating Margin
(Operating income to revenue)*

Net Income/ROE
(Millions of yen)

(Millions of yen)

(%)

(Millions of yen)
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Annual Report 2015

IFRS
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Organization
FY2010

FY2011

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014

Consolidated subsidiaries

51

57

58

58

74

Japan

20

20

19

19

19

Overseas

31

37

39

39

55

10,198

9,316

9,085

8,821

9,583

491

445

474

495

541

1.33

1.17

1.27

1.43

1.40

12,394

12,537

11,371

10,970

10,673

514

531

518

506

577

Environment-related data*3
Energy consumption (1,000 GJ)
Total CO2 emissions (1,000 tons CO2e)
CO2 emissions per unit of sales
(tons CO2e per ¥ million)

Water use (1,000 m3)
VOC (volatile organic compounds) (t)
Occupational safety data*4
Frequency rate

0.43

0.15

0.25

0.34

0.09

0.040

0.009

0.011

0.003

0.001

Japan

1,957

2,205

2,371

2,582

2,983

Overseas

1,734

2,040

2,174

2,406

2,518

Severity rate
Number of patents held

Notes: 3. Scope of environment-related data reporting is main manufacturing sites (18 companies and 33 sites in fiscal year 2014). Scope of data reporting in
previous fiscal years is main manufacturing sites of the relevant year. For more information, visit our website at http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/
csr/stakeholder/environment/datasheet.html.
4. Scope of occupational safety data reporting is consolidated Group companies in Japan.

People

Number of employees
Japan
Overseas

FY2010

FY2011

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014

15,930

16,713

17,732

18,149

19,499

10,918

10,845

10,769

10,619

9,292

5,012

5,868

6,963

7,530

10,207

Others*5
Education expenses per employee (Yen)*6

—

—

50,135

52,950

45,387

Social contribution expenditure (Millions of yen)
Employee volunteers to social contribution
activities
Compliance training participants

—

89.67

111.04

102.61

106.91

523

831

1,553

889

1,040

981

1,288

1,774

2,072

3,137

Notes: 5. “—” denotes no data compiled for the category.
6. Scope of education expenses per employee is Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

CO2 Emissions

Water Use

Employees

(1,000 t-CO2e)

(1,000 m3)

(Persons)

600

15,000

20,000

500

12,000

Japan

Overseas

15,000

400
9,000
300

10,000
6,000

200
5,000

3,000

100

0

0
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

(FY)

0
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

(FY)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

(FY)

Note: CO2 emissions are calculated on the basis of the Act on Promotion of Global Warming Countermeasures. However, CO2 emissions for power
usage at overseas business sites are calculated using fiscal year 2005 CO2 emission factor for the countries listed by the International Energy
Agency in 2010.
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Top Message

We operate from the viewpoint of the business,
organization and people, and will
continue to provide values to
our customers and society.

President and Chief Executive Officer
Kazuyuki Tanaka
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Fiscal year 2014 was the middle year of the Medium-term
Management Plan (fiscal years 2013–2015). Could you review
the company’s performance for the year?

In our Medium-term Management Plan, we are aiming for ¥600.0 billion in net sales and
an operating margin of at least 10% in fiscal year 2015. Fiscal year 2014 was the interim
year of the plan, so we pursued a number of measure designed to realize target of ¥525.0
billion in net sales and an operating margin of 7%.
Getting to specifics: One of our key initiatives was the launch of the Open Laboratory in
June 2014. In our view, this has enabled the establishment of a business model in which we
will efficiently develop new packaging materials and processes together with our customers
and equipment manufacturers. Also, in order to expand the energy storage device business
and accelerate our overseas push, we made CSB Battery Co., Ltd (Taiwan). a consolidated
subsidiary in January 2015. Then in April 2015 we established regional headquarters in the
United States and Thailand to enable us to respond quickly to markets and make a development in these regions. At home meanwhile, as part of our structural reform aimed at a
step up in global growth, we implemented a voluntary early retirement program and
worked to ensure more robust management and business structure.
As a result of these initiatives, we were able to
Results Trends
increase sales and income for another year runNet Sales (Revenue)*
ning: net sales grew by 8.1% from the previous
Operating Income
fiscal year to ¥534.0 billion, and operating in534.0
488.7
493.8
464.7
come rose 26.5% year-on-year to ¥35.1 billion.
Unfortunately our operating margin fell short of
target, 6.6% as the result. We attribute this
mainly to our inability to get new-product devel36.6
35.1
opment up to speed quickly enough, though a
27.8
23.6
delay into 2015 of the benefits expected from
fixed-cost reductions as a result of structural
2012
2013
2013
2014
changes is also to blame.
Related information: P. 15–18, P. 27–280

(Billions of yen)

525.1

29.2

2014

(FY)

IFRS

JGAAP

*Terms in parentheses are used for IFRS.

Basic Policies and Strategies of the Medium-term Management Plan

Basic Policies

Achieve revenue and income growth by differentiating high-end products
with material technologies and expanding on the global stage

Strengthen business structure through structural reforms
Growth Strategies
Business Strategies
High Functional
Materials

Improve profitability by differentiating high-end products with material
technologies as a revenue growth driver and expand product sales overseas

Automotive
Products
Energy Storage
Devices

Target position as a global supplier, improve profitability by increasing overseas
production, expand overseas sales channels, and accelerate development of
next-generation products
Accelerate growth in the global market and establish operating foundations
for full-fledged growth starting in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2017,
as a future mainstay business

Life Sciences

Develop track record in diagnostics field as a future base business and explore
potential of new business areas

R&D Strategies: Revise research portfolio to contribute to the development of new businesses
Investment Strategies: Stringently select investment themes that will directly generate earnings
(Introduce ROIC as an investment management index)

Cost Structure Reforms
Implement reforms from the perspectives of both business structures and workflow processes
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Top Message

Q2

Could you fill us in on the the Medium-term Management
Plan engagement in fiscal year 2015 and the results outlook
for its final year?

In fiscal year 2015 we will put the finishing touches on our Medium-term Management
Plan. As we look toward further global growth, we aim to reap the benefits of the policies
we have implemented to date. We also plan to continue building a flexible management
structure that will enable us to be more responsive to market developments.
Our IFRS-based targets for fiscal year 2015 are revenue of ¥570.0 billion and operating
income of ¥55.0 billion. This excludes items such as M&A that are very hard forecast, so in
real terms we think we are in a position to achieve the numerical targets laid out in our
Medium-term Management Plan—¥600.0 billion in net sales and an operating margin of
over 10%.

Q3

Could you update us the progress of global business expansion?

Our global development is making great strides. In fiscal year 2013 the overseas share of
net sales surpassed 50%, and at the end of March 2015 more than 50% of our employees
were overseas for the first time. These figures show that our aggressive investment in
overseas businesses and M&A are bearing fruit.
The Hitachi Chemical Group’s first major foray overseas was around 1990, when Japanese semiconductor and printed circuit board manufacturers expanded outside Japan. We
built production facilities to make Epoxy molding compounds and photosensitive dry films
for printed wiring boards. The second wave was when Japanese automobile manufacturers
really stepped up their business activities in China and Southeast Asia. Targeting a position
as a global automotive components supplier, we built production facilities in these regions.
Our third wave, from here onwards, will be building on progress to date. Taking advantage of our overseas factories which make a wide range of products for the electronics industry as well as automobile parts, we aim to produce products tailored suit the various
characteristics and needs of these regions and build on our achievements. As part of these
efforts, in April 2015 we integrated four consolidated subsidiaries in Thailand (three manufacturers and one sales company). The integrated company has consolidated each individual company that had separately developed businesses in manufacturing and marketing
batteries, powder metal products and disc brake pads. The aim of this is to boost operational efficiency through exchanging personnel and production technology and sharing
market knowledge.
Related information: P. 27–28

Q4

Tell us why Hitachi Chemical plans to make energy
storage devices third core business.

The performance of batteries and capacitors depends on how well you can combine the
materials used for their key four components—cathode, anode, electrolytes, and separators—in a compatible manner. In this sense, the energy storage device business is an extension of the materials business. This is an area where we can leverage the materials technology expertise we have built up to date.
In order to have energy storage devices on a par with functional materials and automotive products as a core business, we made Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery—a company with
a long history in the energy storage device industry—a wholly owned subsidiary in fiscal
year 2012.
One reason we did this was that Hitachi Chemical was late in expanding overseas in this
business. We wanted to see how well our technology would do outside Japan. How far we
can go with this business depends partly on how we develop our accumulated technology
overseas. Another important point is how to get access to effective sales channels. As part
of these efforts, in fiscal year 2014 we purchased shares in CSB Battery, an affiliate of

Annual Report 2015
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Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery, making it a consolidated subsidiary. In fiscal year 2015, we
are asking this company as a new member of our group to absorb our corporate philosophy, the Hitachi Chemical Group Identity as quickly as possible, and align its governance
with ours. We are keen to see the energy storage device business take a great leap onto the
world stage.
Related information: P.28

Energy Storage Device Business: Track Record and Future Actions

Automotive batteries

Industrial batteries

Accelerate growth by developing next generation lead-acid
batteries and expanding customer base and sales channels

Facilitating third core business creation
in a planned manner

Progress
•Strengthened global position
Expanded customer base and
sales channels through alliances
Develop next-generation
lead-acid batteries for vehicles
with Idling Stop Systems (ISS)
(Use high-capacity technology to
launch new products)

• Increase share
of ISS batteries
ISS/high regeneration

Other

•Made CSB Battery Co., Ltd. a consolidated subsidiary
•Actively promote verification orders in the growing
power storage application market
Projects acquired in fiscal year 2014
(Each worth at least ¥300 million)
Application/Purpose

25% 28% 33%

Order

Lithium Ion Battery (LIB)
Hybrid

2

Output fluctuation control

Lithium Ion Capacitors (LICs)

1

2012 2013 2014
(FY)

Product

Power grid stabilization

4

Policies for fiscal year 2015
•Strengthened global position
Expand customer base and sales channels through
M&A activities and alliances
Develop new products in next-generation
lead-acid batteries for vehicles,
focusing on those with ISS
Technology for extra durability
Control electrolyte density to limit
deterioration of electrodes
(stratification) Improving durability

Q5

•Leverage synergies with newly consolidated CSB
Battery to accelerate global development
•Acquire large-scale projects and build track record in
power storage application market
Increase cooperation with system companies (In Hitachi
group and others)
Offer solutions combining four energy storage devices
(lead-acid batteries, LIBs, LICs, and capacitors)
•Develop new LIB products
Complete high input-output, long-life product, ensure
ancillary response

Could you tell us how the take-up of Hitachi Chemical
Group Vision of the next 50 years unveiled last fiscal year
is going?

Our group is mainly in B-to-B businesses. We get to understand our customers’ needs
through dialogue and have the technological ability to create products that precisely meet
these needs. We view this as one of our Group’s strengths.
However, that will not be enough in the future. We must be able to identify customer
needs and social issues that are not yet obvious at an early stage. We need to be proactive
in offering solutions for these issues with our technology and products.
In fiscal year 2014 we launched our Working On Wonders Beyond Boundaries, WOW-BB
activities to create Hitachi Chemical Group of the future. These revolve around the
bottom-up WOW Global Award activities. The WOW Global Award activities involve teams
choosing one of five challenges from the following themes: 1) Have the ability to identify
needs; 2) Envision future scenarios; 3) Create the next core technologies; 4) Become a
globally-preferred company; and 5) Develop work styles that allow for co-creation. The
WOW Global Award activities celebrates this process of taking on a challenge. In the first
year 937 teams from all around the world entered. After elimination rounds in the regions,
10 teams made it to the final round in Tokyo in May 2015. The top four teams were
awarded gold prizes.
Kaizen activities in small groups are held to be the special domain of manufacturing sites,
but we had many entries from back-office departments such as administration and HR
which were of extremely high quality. The participation rate was an impressive 85% in
Japan, 27% overseas and 61% on average worldwide, reflecting the initiative of our
employees and the power of a bottom-up approach.
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Top Message
We expect even more entries from overseas when we hold the WOW Global Award
again in fiscal year 2015. Through continuing these activities we will surely get close to the
stage where we can build the Hitachi Chemical Group of the next 50 years—one that
develops innovative solutions beyond the boundaries of chemistry and delivers wonders
that exceed society’s and our customers’ expectations.
Related information: P. 39–40

Q6

Could you give some perspective on the next Medium-term
Management Plan (fiscal years 2016–2018)?

Traditionally, the Medium-term Management Plan was based on currently apparent themes
and issues. We forecast the future three years ahead, and created a plan based on this. As
a result, there was a tendency for the plan to target short-term sales and profits. It was not
possible to incorporate ideas about what sort of shape the company should have in the
future and what sort of direction we should be taking.
This time, we asked the question: “How will the business environment change over the
next decade?” Then, based on this we decided to first make a solid “10-year strategy” with
an overlay of our vision for the Hitachi Chemical Group 10 years from now. Once we do
that, and see what we need to do for the first three years from a 10-year perspective, what
we need to do in the following three years also becomes clear in a stepwise fashion. We’re
going to incorporate this kind of scheme into our next Medium-term Management Plan.
Related information: P. 39

Q7

What is the thinking behind the integration of business
strategies and CSR?

CSR encompasses elements of social contribution and consideration for the environment,
but our group aims to grow sustainably and be able to keep offering values to our customers and society. To this end, we need to create a virtuous cycle of growing sales and increasing profits. For Hitachi Chemical, this is the bedrock of CSR. Furthermore, if there is ever any
situation that shakes our business foundation, our nearly 20,000 employees and their
families as well as nonemployee stakeholders will face immeasurable repercussions. It is
essential to create business cycles and schemes that underwrite sustainable growth.
We have been pursuing three major guidelines stated clearly in our CSR Medium-term
Roadmap: Stage 2 (2011–2015) involving our Business stance, our Corporate stance, and
the Individual stance of employees. We have interlinked these with our engagement in the
CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2 (2011–2015)
Target

Promotion of sustainable business in order
to evolve into a corporate group that is
competitive throughout the world

Goal Setting and Planning
for KPI Registration

Three major guidelines
Sustainable business that contributes to the global society
Business
stance

Promotion of sustainable engineering
Visualization of the Group’s contribution to the global community
through its business activities

Honest corporate management
Corporate
stance

Fostering a culture of dialogue/Enhancement of corporate value
through active disclosure of information
Enhanced Group governance
Promotion of transparent corporate management

A group of employees contribute to society and being
world-class professionals
Individual
stance

Annual Report 2015

Change in consciousness of all employees towards sustainable
development
Fostering personnel who will behave in every situation in ways
they can be proud of

Approach Review

Promotion
Cycle of CSR
Medium-term
Roadmap:
Stage 2

Implementation
at Each Division

Reporting at Group Environment
and CSR Committee (once a year)
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three facets reforms which, I have been promoting since I took over as president—Business
reform, Organizational reform, and Human resources reform. Continuing with these directions, and in the belief that business activities should embody CSR, we will evolve the
Hitachi Chemical Group into a world-class enterprise in all its facets.
Related information: P. 01

Q8

What kind of nonfinancial targets do you have?

Promoting diversity is one of our group’s business strategies. We have diverse products and
technologies. We develop new products by combining or integrating a variety of technologies. Human resources are the same. We operate businesses in new regions and launch
new businesses by bringing together the talents of a variety of people. We must offer a
forum and have in place a framework whereby people can display their talents regardless
of age, gender or nationality.
As part of these efforts, we have changed our compensation system in Japan from one
focused on ability-based pay to one that focuses on an employee’s role, grade-based pay,
and this new scheme is being applied at the Company and all domestic member companies
of the Group. Once we develop a corporate strategy and create an organization to implement it, it is clear what positions are necessary. By filling these roles with the appropriate
personnel, we get the benefit of each person’s potential being realized. We plan to have
the scheme in place at all overseas Group companies by the end of fiscal year 2015 to help
achieve diversity in the true sense of the word.
From fiscal year 2014, materiality (issues that Hitachi Chemical should deal with) was
prioritized and disclosed. We are considering setting nonfinancial targets as part of our
performance benchmarks in the next Medium-term Management Plan. Including diversity,
we intend to set some of these as our own key performance indicators (KPIs) and make our
progress visible.
Related information: P. 23 and P. 36

Q9

Finally, what would you like to say to your stakeholders?

Hitachi Chemical’s stated mission is “to contribute to society through the development of
superior technologies and products”.
We believe that one crucial element of this mission is embodied in what we are pursuing
through the Open Laboratory I mentioned earlier; namely, making a de facto standard out
of the process of creating new value through cooperation with a variety of companies. At
Open Laboratory, we hope to develop next-generation components and processes and
create new values by pursuing open innovation—innovation through collaboration among
package-assembly device, process, and materials manufacturers as well as others involved
in semiconductor manufacture.
Further, in addition to accelerating globalization, we are developing our business without
a distinction between Japan and overseas. In particular, we want our domestic employees
to be outward looking and become World-class Professionals. Through this, we can create
new products and grow the business in a sustainable manner and continue to contribute to
our valued shareholders, customers and society as a whole.
Hitachi Chemical will continue to grow as a group that operates from the viewpoint of
business, the organization, and people to create new values beyond the boundaries of
chemistry and deliver wonders that exceed the expectations of our customers and society.
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Hitachi Chemical’s Products and Services

Hitachi Chemical’s Products and Services
The products of the Hitachi Chemical Group are used as materials and in the components employed in a
variety of familiar items, including digital household appliances and automobiles, and act as the unseen
contributors to enhancing the functions and performance of those items.

Functional Materials Segment

Advanced Components and Systems Segment

LCD TVs

Allergy tests

Materials that support the new generation of thin-screen high-precision LCD TVs

Diagnostic kits used for pollen and food
allergy tests

MAST III measuring
reagent
A reagent that is used to test
patients up to 33 major
allergens with a single serum
sample

Moisture proof
insulating varnishes
Varnishes for coating the
electrodes of liquid crystals to
protect them from moisture
and short-circuiting

Adhesive films
Protective film to prevent
scratches to components
during the manufacturing
process

Anisotropic
conductive films
Film that can interconnect
several fine, micron-sized
circuits at once

Roofs of houses
Instrumental in helping solar panels generate
electricity more efficiently

Power shovels
Products that help lubricate the joints of
construction equipment

Conductive films
Film for interconnecting
micro electrodes on
photovoltaic cells

Axle bearings
(powder metal
products)
Robust, abrasion-resistant
components that are sintered
and compact-molded from
metal powders

in smartphones
and computers…
Details on next page
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in cars…
Details on next page

Hitachi Chemical’s Products and Services

Artificial satellites

LED lighting

Hitachi Chemical's wiring boards are also utilized in space

Provides energy-saving, long-life lighting
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Multi Wiring Boards
Wiring boards with excellent
reliability even under extreme
conditions

White epoxy
molding compounds
Material that boosts
brightness and is used in the
reflector for LED light

Restaurants and conveyor
belt sushi restaurants
Systems used to manage sushi-go-round plates and
ensure great tasting food

High thermal
conductivity
adhesive sheets
Material that readily
dissipates heat produced by
LEDs and extends their life

Golf courses
Golf carts make transportation easy on sprawling
golf courses

Battery passenger
cart system
Golf carts that automatically
drive themselves

RFID tags

Food wrapping films

Tags instrumental in
identifying and managing
items

Wrap that resists rupture and
shrinkage in microwave
ovens

Trains
Behind the scenes, we help the trains run on time

in wind power
and social
infrastructure…
Details on next page

Carbon brushes
Components that transmit
electricity to motor rotors

Electrical insulating
varnishes
Insulating materials protect
motor coils from short circuits
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Products Used in Electronic Applications
We provide technology and products that enable the continuing evolution of communication devices that
meet the need for more functions and further miniaturization.
Optically clear film
that fills interlayer
spaces

Coating resins used
for paints
Resins which serve as base
polymers for many types of
highly functional paints,
such as high-gloss and
scratch-resistant paints

Clear adhesive film, in liquid
form, that makes screens
more viewable

Lithium-ion battery
anode materials
Carbon anode materials that
contribute to larger battery
capacity

Hard at work as key components in semiconductors—the brains of electronic devices

Die bonding films
Ultra-thin adhesive films used
in securing semiconductor
chips
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Copper-clad
laminates for printed
wiring boards

Photosensitive dry
films for printed
wiring boards

Base materials for printed
wiring boards

Films for making printed
wiring board circuits

CMP slurry
Materials used for
polishing fine irregularities
in semiconductor circuits

Epoxy molding
compounds
Resin for protecting
semiconductor chips from
heat, dust, etc.

Hitachi Chemical’s Products and Services
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Products Used in Automotive Applications
With an eye on the future of carmaking, the power of chemicals is opening up new possibilities in safety,
comfort, environmental awareness and sheer good looks.
Lithium-ion battery
carbon anode materials
for electric vehicles
Materials making possible
specialized lithium-ion
batteries with high capacity
and high discharge load

Plastic back door
modules
Stylishly designed and
lightweight, for added fuel
efficiency, plastic modules for
the rear doors of vehicles

Automotive-use
lead-acid batteries
High-endurance batteries
for many types of vehicles,
including those with Idling
Stop Systems (ISS)

Electrical insulating
varnishes
Varnishes used in the motors
of hybrid vehicle drive
systems, as well as in motors
in other vehicle components

Disc brake pads
High performance brake pads
that stop vehicles in rain,
snow and other adverse
conditions.

Products Used in Infrastructure Applications
Hitachi Chemical’s products and technologies are helping
create a future with greater abundance and convenience in
our lives.

Carbon brushes
Components that draw
electricity from power
generator

Electrical insulating
varnishes
It is an insulating material
indispensable in power
generator coils.

Power storage system
A system that stores power
at night to be used during
the day

Coating resins used
for paints
Resins which serve as base
polymers for many types of
highly functional paints,
such as high-gloss and
scratch-resistant paints
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Special Feature 1 Open Laboratory

Open Innovation Using Open Laboratory
Revolutionizes Materials Business
Special Feature 1
In June 2014, Hitachi Chemical set up Open Laboratory in its Tsukuba Research Laboratory, with the goal
of strengthening its next-generation semiconductor packaging material technologies. Hitachi Chemical
seeks to engage in open innovation by using the Open Laboratory to gain access to state-of-the-art
information and to inspire collaborative R&D within its supply chain. By engaging in open innovation,
Hitachi Chemical aims to lead an industry that delivers “wonders,” which exceed the expectations of
customers and society, and that develops innovative solutions beyond the boundaries of chemistry.

Part 1.

What is Hitachi Chemical’s Open Laboratory?

Purpose and outline
Recent trends in development of semiconductor packaging materials, developing and supplying mounting materials swiftly is urgently important since quality of packaging
technologies have been advancing and life cycle of products have become much shorter. We also need to develop
new ideas, coming from both inside the Group as well
as from other stakeholders, which can be applied to
the development of next-generation products. Hitachi
Chemical has established Open Laboratory as a new
approach to solve these problems.

New approach
The conventional approach in developing packaging
materials was to repeat the time-consuming process of
submitting samples for customers to evaluate. There were
also many problems (such as differences in conditions)
that were easily solved if we could test the samples with
our customers.
In the Open Laboratory, customers can package and
analyze any material they want, regardless differences in
suppliers, including other competitors and also they can
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use our packaging or their own. Our customers can try
any combination of materials they want, since the Hitachi
Chemical are rich in our material stocks, we are able to
offer almost all kinds of materials needed in the packaging
process. This helps us make timely proposals regarding
packaging materials and how they are used (processes) to
get the results customers are looking for.
In this way, not only can we sharply reduce the
development lead time, but also discover new ideas by
sharing customers’ development process.
Conventional approach

New approach

Identify customer’s needs
and propose materials

Identify customer’s needs
and propose materials

Open Laboratory
Extract samples
Repeat until customer approves

Customer evaluation of
materials/process

Customer adopts new material

Hitachi
Chemical’s
sample

Parts and
materials brought
in by customers

Evaluation
(propose solution)

Customer adopts new material

Special Feature 1 Open Laboratory
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Changing relationships
Changing the relationships between Hitachi Chemical and
its customers and competitors, we can evaluate and propose to customers new packaging solutions in collaboration with equipment manufacturers who excel in the relevant fields and companies that supply input materials
Hitachi Chemical does not.

The Hitachi Chemical Open Laboratory enables us to
fulfill customers’ expectations by proposing packaging
materials that offer the performance they are looking for
in a timely manner. This enables us to play a leading role
in the packaging materials business by acquiring and
employing the most advanced knowledge to develop new
products and accommodate customers’ next generation
of products. Our goal is to be a company trusted by our
customers to help them drive their business forward.

Previous structure

Hereafter
Consortium

What kind of materials do our
customers use in combination?
What kind of processing do
they use?

Production
equipment
manufacturers

Materials
manufacturers
(partners)

Customers

Materials
manufacturers
(partners)

Materials
manufacturers
(partners)

Materials
manufacturers
(partners)

Materials
manufacturers
(competitors)

Production
equipment
manufacturers

Alliance

Cooperation

Materials
manufacturers
(competitors)

Hitachi
Chemical

Provide value by leading
the consortium

Hitachi
Chemical
Open
Laboratory

Partnership

Customers

Materials
Sharing information
Materials
(feeding back
manufacturers
manufacturers
production
(competitors)
equipment/process (competitors)
conditions, etc.)

Keeping within existing frameworks and perspectives

Build a consortium of production equipment
and materials manufacturers with Open Laboratory as the hub

(Reduced value for customers)

Background to establishment of Open Laboratory
Rapid advances in semiconductor packaging in terms of
higher density and smaller size have accompanied the relentless progress of devices such as smartphones and tablets. As
a result, package structure is evolving from increasing the
density of surface mount technology to three-dimensional
packaging such as Through Silicon Via (TSV), accompanied by
a diversification of packaging processes.

At the same time, product cycles are becoming shorter. We
must make timely proposals of new packaging materials and
be quick to propose all-round solutions including packaging
processes from the customer’s perspective to develop these
complex semiconductor packages in limited time.

Trends in Electronic Devices and Semiconductor Packaging

1970

1980

1990

2000

2010

2020

Personal computers
Game consoles
Lead frames
Mobile phones
Organic
substrates
Memory layer

Digital cameras
Smartphones

Accelerating trend of smaller,
more powerful electronic devices
Forms of semiconductor
packaging become more complex

Package layer

Tablets
Wearable devices

Shortened product cycles

Device layer

What is a semiconductor package?
The various functions of semiconductor devices are produced by integrated circuits
formed on a silicon chip (bare chip) by undergoing complex processes. Silicon chips
are extremely delicate and can fail or malfunction when exposed to minute quantities
of dirt or moisture. Silicon chips must thus
be coated with resin (molding compounds)
to prevent these problems to protect them
from the external environment. As well,
minute silicon chip electrodes must be
connected to a printed circuit board to ensure electronic data is conveyed accurately.
Semiconductor packages fulfill these roles.

Developing new semiconductor packages in less time
Not just materials: We also provide customers with ideas for packaging processes
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Part 2.

Open Laboratory Concept Makes New Approach Possible

Changing relationship with customers in each process of semiconductor package development

We ask what customers are looking
for, such as the structure of the
semiconductor packages in need for
their next generation of smartphones.
We have installed the latest devices and equipment at our Open Laboratory so customers can
be confident Hitachi Chemical will provide solutions to their needs. Being well equipped, we can
more accurately identify customers’ specific needs
in greater depth and detail.

Identifying customer’s
needs and informing
them about materials

Discussion about
semiconductor
package for evaluation

We consider a range of materials
and processes for evaluation to propose
the best semiconductor package to
the customer.
At Open Laboratory, customers can choose any combination of materials from competitors’ offerings as well as
the extensive range supplied by Hitachi Chemical. We
can discuss and decide with customers which materials
and processes to be used.

After deciding on the materials to evaluate,
we decide on detailed specifications.
Even the same material will have different stress and
flexion depending on variables such as the coefficient of elasticity, coefficient of thermal expansion,
and thickness. At Open Laboratory, we conduct
simulations with customers to determine which
materials with which properties are best to decide
on specific material properties and specifications for
combinations.

Flexing simulation of
a semiconductor package
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Aiming to Be Number 1 in the Packaging Materials Sector
In February 2015 we reorganized the Open Laboratory to transcend functional
barriers. It followed that our people in materials development, marketing, and even
working at overseas marketing locations could all share information and work more
closely together towards common goals. Open Laboratory now gives us a means to
collaborate proactively with both package assembly equipment manufacturers and
other material makers in ways that exceed customers’ expectations in contributing
to their businesses. We will also be working to extend the business model we use
in semiconductor packaging to touch-panel and display applications.

Hiroyuki
Morishima
Executive Officer
of Hitachi Chemical

Open Laboratory as the Core of Proactive Open Innovation
The Open Laboratory’s most salient attribute is that it has Hitachi Chemical’s full
lineup of packaging materials, and a complete array of systems for evaluating
completed packages. Its inception has generated massive interest among not only
our own customers, but assembly-equipment and other material manufacturers as
well, and it allowed us to collaborate with manufacturers with whom we had not
worked with in the past. We hope to unleash Open Laboratory’s potential so that
we are able to participate directly in the next-generation product development
project of our customers.

Evaluation

Adoption

After selecting the materials and processes,
they are evaluated at Open Laboratory.
After discussing requirements with our customers, we provide the
equipment needed for each process of the same standard as their
own. This allows customers to establish material specifications and
process conditions quickly and reduce the time to final selection,
because they can test diverse combinations of materials and specifications at once using the same equipment.

Tadakazu
Miyazaki
General Manager of
Hitachi Chemical
Packaging
Solution Center

Proposals
for customers’
next-generation
products

We analyze the information obtained in collaboration with customers and
propose new materials
and processes for the next
generation of customer
products.
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Our Aim: Become a Group That Grows
in Step with Stakeholders through
Open Innovation
Special Feature 2
To mark its 50th anniversary in 2012, Hitachi Chemical took on a number of challenges, with an eye
on what we should look like 50 years from now: the WOW-BB activities are aimed at our ideal form a
decade in the future. We also launched the Open Laboratory at the Tsukuba Research Laboratory and
implemented a global coaching program. What do external stakeholders think of Hitachi Chemical’s
stance and initiatives? Our Executive Officers exchanged opinions with external experts.

3

4
2

1

Participants

Overview

External Experts
1

Key Themes

Keisuke Takegahara: General Manager, Environmental Initiative & Corporate
Social Responsibility – Support Department, Development
Bank of Japan Inc.

2

Naomi Yamazaki:

Representative Director, ESG Network of Shareholders
& Companies

3

Hisashi Maruyama:

Vice President and Executive Officer, General Manager
Corporate Business Strategy Headquarters

4

Hiroyuki Takei:

Executive Officer, General Manager, Marketing & Sales
Operations

Maruyama: The Group marked its 50th anniversary in
2012. All of our employees took part in discussions on
what the future shape of Hitachi Chemical should be for
the next 50 years. Responding that, Hitachi Chemical
began Working On Wonders Beyond Boundaries (WOW-
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Date
June 2, 2015

Venue

Hitachi Chemical Representatives

Looking 50 Years into the Future
Thinking of 10 Year Strategy

Achieving Hitachi Chemical’s Long-term
Vision and Relationship with Stakeholders

Hitachi Chemical Headquarter

BB for short) activities as first step. This comprises a
10-year strategy which talks of our aspirations for the next
decade and a WOW Global Award which recognizes the
efforts of those who put words into action.
Takegahara: This fifty-year perspective on the future
gave me a fresh impression. Japan is said to have a number of resilient firms which are over 100 years old. Thinking
about what a resilient nature means, I would say that it
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entails having a solid philosophy which enables a constant
return to the company’s founding origins. It is possible to
jump forward 50 years and paint a picture of the future
precisely you have such a philosophy. I feel this is where
your company’s strength lies.
Yamazaki: I feel that WOW-BB activities—getting each
employee to talk about their dreams for the next 10 years
and discuss them with each other and share them across
the entire company as a vision–are extremely unique. I
think that will make the strategy you implement towards
realizing the vision highly effective.
Maruyama: While we do need to achieve results every
quarter, it is also necessary to have discussions and strategies with an eye more towards the future. For example,
our own unique style involves very close relationships with
our customers. This enables us to discover issues they face
and offer solutions with advanced materials technology.
This sort of approach
is not possible from a
short-term viewpoint
alone.
Takegahara: Uncovering underlying needs
through relationships
with customers is really the thinking behind
open innovation, isn’t
it?

Open Innovation Reveals
New Relationships with Customers
Maruyama: As part of our new open innovation initiatives, we launched the Open Laboratory at the Tsukuba
Research Laboratory. The objective is that using the very
latest technical equipment at the lab with our customers
will shorten semiconductor packaging process development times. It should also enable us to anticipate their
emerging needs. We will work with our customers and
device and materials manufacturers to develop new processes. When our own materials do not have the requisite
characteristics, we may test materials from our competitors. This is an unprecedented experiment.
Since the lab opened last year, many customers and
device and materials manufacturers have visited the facility, and this has already led to product finalization and
joint development projects. The interest is intense and
palpable.
Takei: With rapid shifts in the market environment and
evolving customer requirements, it is becoming difficult
to discover underlying needs and innovate with internal
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resources alone. To our way of thinking, we need to use
external resources more than ever to assist in innovation.
Using the Open Laboratory will lead to changes in the
relationship with our customers, device manufacturers
and competitors in the medium and long terms. Hitachi
Chemical hopes to use the Open Laboratory to obtain
the latest information. Forming consortia with companies
that have particular areas of expertise in the device and
material fields will enable us to meet our customers’
expectations.
Maruyama: The thinking behind the Open Laboratory is
applicable to fields other than packaging materials. We
are investigating its use in other business areas as well.

Sharing Vision Globally to Foster
a Sense of Unity
Takei: In fiscal year 2014 overseas net sales reached 53%
of the total. We intend to accelerate our globalization. We
intend to strengthen and expand our overseas locations
and boost our presence, including via M&A, and tap into
undeveloped territories such as Africa and the Middle
East. We realize that expanding overseas requires closer
communications with our local partners and respecting
their corporate culture.
Takegahara: If the personnel resigns a company that has
been acquired, it defeats the purpose. Knowing how to
delegate authority to the local business while maintaining
group cohesiveness will be one of the elements of your
company’s nonfinancial strengths, in my view.
Maruyama: With the
acquisition in January
this year of CSB Battery,
non-Japanese
people make up the
majority of the workforce. In the process of
globalization, promoting diversity is essential. The only way for
individual employees
from a great variety of
backgrounds to have a
unified purpose is to
share our management vision.
We also think that in our next Medium-term Management Plan it will be necessary to clarify what sort of role
headquarters will play in our global development.
Yamazaki: Recently, the adequacy of measures to deal
with public officials taking bribes or tax avoidance overseas is being called into question in no uncertain terms. It
is important for companies to clearly reveal their thinking
on these issues and what measures they are taking to
prevent such behavior.
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Maruyama: We have a clear policy of never paying bribes,
and are conducting extensive awareness campaigns. Also,
our mission is to make fair profits and pay taxes and
provide values to the world, which is one area where we
must hold firm.
Takei: We realize that neglecting CSR and compliance issues is a major risk in expanding overseas. In addition to
regular audits under our policy initiatives, we are continually educating our employees.

Realizing Our Corporate Vision
Worldwide through Developing
Global Human Resources
Maruyama: Within the Group, we have a term for employees who share our vision and take the initiative to
grow by upgrading their knowledge and skills: WorldClass Professionals (WCPs). This is not just for Japanese;
we demand the same effort from our overseas employees.
Hitachi Chemical is fostering the development of these
WCPs through numerous training programs.
Takei: We present
what we call a WOW
Global Award to people who work hard to
achieve our vision. In
the first year of the
award four of the 10
finalist teams were
from overseas. This
gives us the feeling
that the corporate
philosophy of Hitachi
Chemical cultivated in
Japan is taking hold globally and starting to put down
roots.
Takegahara: If companies acquired take on board the
management philosophy of Hitachi Chemical and are able
to develop human resources sympathetic to your philosophy, that would certainly be a significant outcome,
wouldn’t it?
Takei: Even if we head-hunt talented human resources,
they will not necessarily deepen their understanding of
our company’s culture in the short term. We really do feel
a sense of loyalty from people who have a long tenure
with Hitachi Chemical. We are very keen to foster the careers of those people who have worked with us for a long
time and understand Hitachi Chemical’s vision.
Yamazaki: In globalization, corporate philosophy certainly plays an important role. There is no point having it just
as decoration. It starts to become a strength of the company once it is taken up among the employees and reflected in actual actions. Investors place a great deal of importance on this when looking at a company’s sustainability.
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A key consideration is how to explain these sorts of nonfinancial strengths.

Medium-term Management Plan:
Looking 10 Years into Future – without
Numerical Prospect – to Think about
Direction over Next Three Years
Yamazaki: It appears
that the next Medium-term
Management Plan (covering
fiscal years 2016–2018)
will be drafted with a
10-year horizon as a
WOW-BB strategy.
Maruyama: We have
a business strategy
conference every autumn. The focus had
been confirming basic
strategies for setting
the budget for the
next fiscal year. Last year however, it was a forum for
major divisions to announce their 10-year strategies. At
this autumn’s business strategy conference, we want to
have deep discussions about where we want to be in 10
years, and based on that, think about what we need to do
in the next three years. We will incorporate this into our
next Medium-term Management Plan.
Our typical plans used to be drafted using the past as
the departure point, and focused on building up financial
figures from this numerical base. This year we will be
adopting a new style with nonfinancial targets as well.
Takegahara: Investors including me want to know why
Hitachi Chemical is able to achieve profit margins above
the industry average and its rivals. We do not hear much
about nonfinancial information in Medium-term Management Plan. But if you explain this as a point of difference
with other firms, I think that might resonate with investors.
In my personal opinion, your company’s strengths lie in
how your technologies, human resources, and customers
relate to one another.
Yamazaki: What investors want to know about is the Big
Picture that managers have in their mind, along the following lines: 1) Where are they headed? (corporate philosophy); 2) What issues are there? (mission); 3) What sort of
future are they going to create? (business objectives); 4)
How will they get to their destination? (strategy); 5) Key
resources and how to recycle them (business model); 6)
How will they manage in a sound manner? (governance);
7) What sort of risks and opportunities do they envisage
and how will they respond? (sustainability/ESG); 8) Where
are they now and where are they going? (medium-term
business plan). Investors often say they want to hear about
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long time periods of 10 to 20 years. The medium-term
plan, which covers the short term, comes last. I get the
feeling that once the destination is determined, all else
becomes clear and falls into place as a matter of course.

Era of Open Innovation
in the Area of Finance/IR as Well
Maruyama: Our company wants to cultivate a culture of
dialogue within the Group. We view this as a major issue.
Facing a single target, aiming for growth and holding discussions is a dialogue. This is something we must do with
all of our stakeholders starting with our employees and
shareholders.
Yamazaki: I think investors are looking for the kind of
attitude where the CEO himself is open about failures to
meet targets and reasons why, winning them over and
getting them involved in management. Accomplishing this
would deepen investors’ confidence in the company.
Investors are not the only stakeholders. It is important
to have dialogues with other stakeholders including NGOs
and NPOs and absorb their different ways of thinking. This
is what we mean by “open innovation” in the area of IR.
Maruyama: Another important stakeholder group is our
employees. We are trying to inculcate a culture of dialogue
through our Global Coaching Program and Town Meetings. Without dialogue between management and employees or among employees themselves, we cannot
complete our Medium-term Management Plans the way
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we wish. The plan-setting process is an ideal opportunity
for all employees to think about the next decade. We take
this seriously.
Yamazaki: The process is the most important thing in
motivating employees to aim at targets, isn’t it?

Developing Visible KPIs
for Nonfinancial Factors
Takei: Once the Medium-term Management Plan has
been finalized, we must create disclosure documents.
Yamazaki: The raw materials are already there, so the
next task is working out how to combine these raw materials in a story that is well accepted by investors.
Takegahara: The material needed to paint the next picture of Hitachi Chemical, including nonfinancial elements,
has already been identified. Next issue is how to show this
internally and externally. While it is difficult, we would like
to see your company prepare something like social contribution key performance indicators (KPIs).
Maruyama: I would like some day to be able to say that
if Hitachi Chemical’s sales increase the world will be a
better place. It is necessary to put all of the above elements
together and integrate them with the right spirit. Today
we talked about extremely important issues and learned a
great deal. Thank you very much for your participation.
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Hitachi Chemical’s Value Creation Process
Hitachi Chemical does business considering the materiality identified through external environment analysis
and risk/opportunity analysis, based on our mission to “contribute to society through the development of
superior technologies and products.” Going forward as well, we will maintain sustainable growth with a view
to maximizing values for our stakeholders.

Mission

Financial
Capital

Hitachi Chemical
Business Activities

Risks and
Opportunities

Manufactured
Capital

Business
Intellectual
Capital
Organization

Inputs
Human
Capital

Human
Resources

Natural
Capital

Performance

Social and
Relationship
Capital

Hitachi Chemical Group Materiality (P. 25–40)
Hitachi Chemical uses materiality analysis to accurately
grasp and appropriately prioritize key management and
business issues. The materiality matrix shown below plots
the issues derived from the analysis according to their

Importance to stakeholders

Very
high

High

importance to the business and stakeholders. We will
review this regularly in the future and use it as a basis for
management decisions.

Promotion of sustainable engineering

Intellectual property strategy

Strengthening material
technology capabilities

Engaging
in environmental
management

Strengthening quality management

Diversity management

Global business
expansion

Interactive communication with stakeholders
WOW-BB activities

Promotion of open innovation
Occupational safety and health management

Supply-chain management
Strengthening marketing

Enhancement of localization

Development and evaluation
of globally-competitive
human resources
Creating new
businesses and products

Delivering safe
and easy-to-use products

Increase in productivity

Business
Stable supply of products
Promotion of strategic alliances

Organization
Human resources

Improvement of synergy management

Importance to business

Very high

Visit our website for more details of the materiality analysis process.
http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/group/materiality.html
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Shareholders and Investors

Governan
ce

Through prompt and fair disclosure of information and
high-quality communication, we strive to heighten our
presence in the capital market and increase our corporate
value.

Strategy and
Resource Allocation

Customers and Business Partners
We aim for the development of next-generation technologies
and the steady supply of reliable products through the
maintenance of good partnerships. We identify and deal with
risks from a perspective encompassing the entire value chain.

Business Model

Employees
Hitachi
Chemical
Products
& Services

We provide a pleasant and safe working environment while
respecting human rights and promoting individual growth
through education.

Providing
Values to
Stakeholders

Society
We make ongoing contributions to local communities,
residents and the international community through understanding the conditions and circumstances of the regions in
which we do business.

(0utputs)

Governments and Public Administration
We constantly update our knowledge of, and strictly adhere
to, the statutory and regulatory requirements of the countries
and regions in which we do business and fulfill obligations as
a good corporate citizen.

Outlook

Global Environment
With conservation of the global environment being an issue
of propriety for management, we are pursuing technological
development and production activities through implementation of sustainable engineering.

Results produced by our business activities (P. 11–14)
Hitachi Chemical produces materials, parts, and components. It has two reporting segments based on the degree
of processing: Functional Materials, and Advanced
Components and Systems.

Functional Materials Segment
The main products are electronics materials, inorganic
materials, resin materials, and printed circuit board materials. Hitachi Chemical uses its extensive fundamental technology in organic and inorganic chemistry and other fields
cultivated over many years to offer solutions to its customers through cutting-edge functional materials.

Net Sales (Revenue)*/Operating Income
Sales (Revenue)*

Functional materials segment

Advanced components and systems segment

Operating income

Functional materials segment

Advanced components and systems segment

Sales (Revenue)*
(Billions of yen)

Operating Income
(Billions of yen)

50

600
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258.1

245.5
31.1

228.2

233.0
219.5

Advanced Components and Systems Segment
The main products are automotive components, power
storage devices and systems and electronic components.
By combining and integrating our accumulated advanced
materials technology and processing technology, we have
developed reliable advanced components and systems to
meet our customer’s needs in the fields of automobiles,
industrial energy, electronics and life sciences.

31.7
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20.1
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11.0

245.2
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30
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20
275.8
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5.8
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3.6
0
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Strengthening Material Technology Capabilities
Basic Approach
The mission of Hitachi Chemical is to contribute to society
through the development of superior technologies and
products. To this end, we are strengthening our material
engineering, which is the foundation of new product development. One of the growth strategies set out in our
Medium-term Management Plan is to differentiate our
products by strengthening our material engineering in
high-end markets. We believe we must not only drive

technological innovation from within, but also work with
partners outside the company to incorporate changing
trends in society to put this strategy into action. In addition to these open innovation approach, we are working
on strengthening our unique material engineering for
next-generation products.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical has been providing values to customers
by harmonizing in-depth materials know-how nurtured in
the process of developing our four original products that
straddle organic and inorganic chemicals, and a wide
range of technologies developed in the process of making
more advanced products. These technologies come
in four categories: material technology (e.g., refining,
extraction, formulation, and synthesis, which forms the
basics of material development); process technology that

brings out optimal properties of materials to fulfill diverse
needs; evaluation technology for working out the next
step by precise data analysis; and design technology to
make the required function realize. As a company that
engages in technological innovation, Hitachi Chemical
harnesses these four fundamental technologies (including
material technology) to provide value to society.

Fundamental Technologies and Business Fields
Technology Platforms

Key Business Fields
Telecommunications & Displays

Original Products

Insulating varnishes
Industrial laminates

Material
technologies

Purification, Extraction, Compounding, Organic
and inorganic synthesis, Precision polymerization,
Organic–inorganic hybrid

Process
technologies

Surface control, Interface control, Dispersion,
Impregnation, Coating, Composite formation,
Lamination, Sintering, Molding, Biotechnology

Evaluation
technologies

Material property evaluation, Packaging process
evaluation, Package reliability evaluation, Analysis

Design
technologies

Molecular and particle design, Functional resin design,
Device design, High-frequency circuit design, Thermal
management, CAE

Environment & Energy

Carbon brushes
Porcelain insulators

Strengthening R&D structure
Hitachi Chemical has shifted its focus on priority business
areas in setting up an R&D structure to strengthen further
research in cutting-edge technologies of the future. We
invest over 5% of sales in R&D to create new products
and businesses.
Our research labs are positioned as “functions that
progress commercialization” and are part of the New
Business Development Headquarters instead of an independent R&D organization. Each priority research field
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Life Sciences

Automobiles &
Transportation Infrastructure

(semiconductors & displays, batteries, social infrastructure, future technologies, and fundamental technologies)
has its own development center.
Hitachi Chemical’s R&D organizations also play a marketing role so that the company can respond swiftly to
fast-changing market conditions and next-generation
needs. We provide education to strengthen marketing
capability to employees with a marketing role so that we
can effectively unite our technology with customer needs.
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Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Wavelength conversion particles that help improve
conversion efficiency of solar cell power generation
on sale
Hitachi Chemical developed and began selling wavelength
conversion particles for solar cell encapsulant sheets that
help improve the conversion efficiency of solar power
generation. These particles are acrylic resin particles that
contain phosphors that work by converting short wavelength (ultraviolet) light, which could not previously be
used for power generation, into long wavelength (visible)
light. Solar cell modules that use solar encapsulant sheets
(wavelength conversion film) made of these particles were
found to increase conversion efficiency by up to around
2.2%* when compared with solar cell modules using
conventional solar encapsulants in outdoor tests. The
particles do not compromise the durability of solar cell
modules, because they are dispersed throughout highly
durable acrylic resin. Module manufacturers do not have
to alter the manufacturing process to mix the particles
into solar encapsulant
sheets. The process
thus contributes to an
increase in conversion
efficiency without affecting productivity.
In fluorescent light

In ultraviolet light

*The result of outdoor tests conforming to the JIS C 8919 standard, comparing
performance with a solar cell module using conventional encapsulant sheet. (JIS C
8919 is an outdoor output measurement method for crystalline solar cell modules.)

Material technology awards
1) Wins fiscal year 2014 National Commendation
for Invention Asahi Shimbun Invention Prize, and
Special Invention Award for inventing carbon material for high performance lithium ion batteries
Hitachi Chemical received the Asahi Shimbun Invention
Award and Special Invention Award for its invention of a
high performance lithium ion secondary battery carbon
material (Patent No. 3325021) in the fiscal year 2014 National Commendation for Invention awards.
Lithium ion battery (LIB) carbon material refers to a LIB
anode material developed and manufactured by Hitachi
Chemical. The invention is a patent that covers the product’s material and manufacturing method. The award
recognized the dramatic improvement in energy density
and large current properties compared with conventional
anode materials achieved by forming quasiisotropic,
spherical graphite particles with micropores inside the

particles and the technology’s contribution to commercializing a high-performance LIB.
Large-capacity, small and lightweight LIBs are used in
mobile devices like notebook PCs and mobile phones, and
more recently in hybrid and electric vehicles, and storage
batteries for renewable energy. Their scope of application
continues to expand.
2) Wins 10th JPCA Award for new fine patterning
package substrate material
Hitachi Chemical received the 10th JPCA Award for its
new material for fine patterning package substrates by
semi-additive process. Recipients are chosen by a panel of
judges representing academia, the electronic circuit business, industry magazine editors, and other experts. Judging criteria are: 1) Originality of the product and technology; 2) Potential for development and commercial success;
3) Reliability; and 4) Conformity with contemporary requirements. Six entries out of 22 submitted by 18 companies received the awards. This was the sixth JPCA award
for Hitachi Chemical.
The award-winning product is a semi-additive fine
patterning package substrate that delivers outstanding
adherence between copper and insulating resin with
a low level of roughening to meet the increasingly tough
demands of next-generation fine patterning. By combining
the product with a substrate containing glass fiber allows
it to be used with the
semi-additive process
as well as manufacture package substrates that combine
high rigidity and fine
patterning (L/S=5/5
μm or less).
Fine patterning achieved (L/S=5/5μm)

KPI R&D Expenses to Net Sales (R&D Expenses

to Revenue)*
(%)
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Global Business Expansion
Basic Approach
Our overseas business expansion policy set out in our fiscal years 2013–2015 Medium-term Management Plan
calls for maintaining and improving our profitability in
high-end products in the high functional materials business through product differentiation by leveraging our
material engineering and sales of products overseas. In
the automotive business, our goal is to improve profitability, expand overseas sales channels, and accelerate development of next-generation products by increasing overseas production to become a global supplier. In the
storage devices business, which we position as a future

mainstay, we aim to speed up overseas growth and establish a solid business base to propel growth in earnest in
fiscal year 2016 and beyond. We plan to strengthen our
production, marketing, and sales structures to capture
demand in emerging markets and grasp opportunities for
market expansion.
We also seek to become a global company whose
management is controlled by a group-wide governance
structure. To this end we run compliance education programs and audits as well as strengthening risk management that takes local conditions into consideration.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Over the past several years Hitachi Chemical has been
building a structures to allow it to grab a share of the
globally expanding demand in market segments it serves.
It has been strategically investing in capital equipment,
mainly to boost production capacity, with focus on

emerging economies. In fiscal year 2014, overseas sales
accounted for 52.8% of net sales. Overseas production’s
share of net sales also rose, reaching 33.1%. (See KPI
graphs opposite.)

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Strengthening the functions of regional
headquarters
Hitachi Chemical assigns the role of regional headquarters
to core Group companies in priority regions to establish
an efficient regional management and business operation
structure. This allows us to pursue marketing strategies
that respond to demand trends in each region and engage in R&D, manufacturing, and sales activities that
conform to local demand. Hitachi Chemical centralized
management and strengthened governance of Group
companies in China by establishing Hitachi Chemical
(China) Co., Ltd. as the regional headquarters for China
in fiscal year 2011. This put in place a structure for fast
decision-making led by local staff at business sites closest

to customers and strengthening governance. Hitachi
Chemical also launched regional headquarters in the U.S.
and Thailand in April 2015.
Introducing the global standard backbone IT
system (AX)
The Hitachi Chemical Group introduced its global standard
backbone IT system (AX) to integrate the backbone IT
systems of all overseas Group companies and manage information required for global management in a fast and
accurate manner. AX covers sales, purchasing, and production control and is designed to improve efficiency of
core business at each business site in combination with the
Group’s accounting system. Using reference system for
performance information of each site and basic information in the chemical substance management system,
AX also enable us to standardize business operations to a
high level.
Image of Global Standard Backbone IT System (AX)
Performance
management
system

AX

Regional headquarters in Thailand
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Purchasing

Inventory
control

Production
planning

Production
control

Quality
control

Chemical
substance
management
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(IFRS compliant)
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Initiatives for Strengthening Global Business

CSB Battery Co., Ltd. becomes
consolidated subsidiary

Regional headquarters
company launched in U.S.

To accelerate global expansion of storage device business
by maximizing synergies with the Hitachi Chemical Group’s
superior lead storage battery technology

To grow storage device market in addition to
electronic materials, automotive components,
and diagnostic reagents businesses

China
Consolidated subsidiaries:
26 companies

Japan
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Consolidated subsidiaries:
19 companies

Europe, Africa
Consolidated subsidiaries:
7 companies

The Americas
Consolidated subsidiaries:
8 companies

ASEAN and India
Consolidated subsidiaries:
13 companies

Pioneering South African market

Regional headquarters company
launched in Thailand

Expatriate personnel based in South Africa to
pioneer local market in high quality resins to make
a point of difference

Integrated four consolidated subsidiaries to improve
customer service and operational efficiency

Number of the companies includes newly launched regional headquarters as of April 2015.

KPI Overseas Net Sales (Revenue)*/

KPI Overseas Productions’ Share of Net Sales

Overseas Share of Net Sales (Revenue)*
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Creating New Businesses and Products
Basic Approach
The Hitachi Chemical Group Vision is as follows: With a
pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas, we develop
innovative solutions beyond the boundaries of chemistry,
delivering “wonders” that exceed the expectations of
customers and society. Hitachi Chemical thus looks at the
big picture of social and market trends to anticipate needs
10 years or more down the road as we strive to create

new products and businesses. Creating new products and
businesses is essential to, and the mainstay of sustained
growth for Hitachi Chemical. Based on our long and rich
history of R&D system, we promote our business activities
by utilizing its resource efficiently to produce output
collaborating with our clients and other external research
institutions.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical has adopted an R&D framework structured on a project basis in which R&D managers report
directly to upper management. This is designed to
strengthen and accelerate our ability to spawn large-scale
businesses that are completely new—i.e., not extensions
of existing business lines. Under this arrangement, the
Tsukuba Research Laboratory plays a central role in running
eight “Super-X” R&D projects in the fields of environment
& energy, life sciences, and social infrastructure.
R&D Structure
New Business Development Headquarters
Tsukuba Research Laboratory
NBD* Marketing Center
Intellectual Property Strategy Office
New Business Development Center
Medical Business Unit

Research laboratories and R&D personnel at the business divisions involved also work in close collaboration in
dedicated teams on 14 Next-X Projects (mainly in electronics and batteries) to accelerate the launch of promising next-generation products in established businesses.

Promotion of Super-X and Next-X Projects
Marketing
Group

Super-X project
(New businesses)

Society and
technology
trend analysis
Advanced
technologies
exploring

Next-X project
(Existing businesses or extension of those businesses)

*New Business Development

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Next-generation lead-acid battery technology for
Idling Stop Systems
Hitachi Chemical developed a next-generation lead-acid
battery technology for cars with Idling Stop Systems
(ISS)*1 that features marked improvements in capacity and
durability.
Many cars are now equipped with ISS to improve fuel
efficiency and reduce the environmental impact of CO2
emissions. The ISS market is thus expanding fast on a
global scale. Hitachi Chemical began selling lead-acid
batteries for ISS-equipped vehicles
in 2010, and these are highly rated
by customers. We succeeded in developing technologies to increase
battery capacity and durability of
lead-acid batteries for ISS vehicles
by leveraging our strengths such as
materials processing technology.

Annual Report 2015

Technology to increase battery capacity
We increased capacity by 5% with the use of a multiporous active material for electrodes to increase contact
area with the electrolyte. This improves the startability of
the engine and handles the increasing electrical load on
the vehicle.
Technology to improve durability
We improved the durability of the battery by 200%*2 by
inhibiting the deterioration (stratification) of electrodes
that occurs due to differences in the concentration of the
electrolyte at the top and bottom of the electrodes
through the addition of a special nonwoven cloth to conventional separators.
Notes: 1. A system that automatically stops and restarts the engine when a vehicle
comes to a stop and start.
2. Compared with a current our ISS battery. Durability was tested under our
standard partial state of charge (PSOC) conditions.

Hitachi Chemical’s Value Creation Process

Two Types of Anisotropic Conductive Films with
Enhanced Performance
Anisotropic conductive film (ACF) for connecting circuits
is widely used in the flat panel displays (FPDs) of tablet
and notebook PCs, and televisions. Hitachi Chemical was
a pioneer in the development of this circuit connection
material.
Hitachi Chemical has developed two ACFs that fulfill
the requirements of thinner and higher-resolution FPDs by
leveraging its functional resin and hardening agent design
technology (a fundamental technology) and particle
dispersion process technology. We will continue to contribute toward further advances in FPDs by developing
sophisticated technologies and new products.
LCD panel

30

2) Particle-aligned anisotropic conductive film
(PAL-ACF) for higher resolution displays
Hitachi Chemical developed a new, chip-on-glass ACF
with 54% reduced particle density* by dispersing conductive particles evenly and consistently in an adhesive
with controlled fluidity for displays with higher resolution
(i.e., finer pitch circuits).
*Particle density: the number of particles per unit area projected when light is applied
from above.

Product Comparison
Attributes

PAL-ACF
(new product)

Conventional ACF

Chip
Conductive
particle
alignment

Product
structure
(cross section)

Flexible printed
circuit board

ACF

Tablet PC

1) UV-boost anisotropic conductive film (UVB-ACF)
for thinner glass substrates
Thinner substrates mean greater temperature differences
between the driver IC chip and FPDs glass substrate. Temperatures required to package traditional ACFs make the
FPDs glass substrate bend
(warp), resulting in uneven
coloring of the FPDs. Our
new ACF reduces the warping of the FPDs glass substrate by 50%, helping manufactures produce thinner
substrates.
Product exterior (in anti-moisture bag
with UV protection)

Product
structure
(package cross
section
photograph)

Photograph of
package exterior
(connection area: 1,200μm)
1) Differential
interference
microscope image
2) Microscope image

FPDs glass substrate flexion (μm)

2) Particles
tend to
agglomerate
between
adjacent
electrodes.

1) Many
particles are
captured
between
counter
electrodes
and there is
minimal
dispersion.

2) Particles
captured
between
adjacent
electrodes
are evenly
distributed
and do not
tend to
agglomerate.

KPI Ratio of Corporate R&D Personnel

30
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1) Particles
captured by
counter
electrode are
unevenly
dispersed.

(%)

Environment & Energy

Telecommuications & Display

Life Sciences

Fundamental Technologies, etc.

100

20

19

Reducing the warping
by up to 50%

15

80
60

10
UVB-ACF

5

12
24

26

90

100

110

150

160

170

45

47

2012

2013

57

180

ACF applied temperature (°C)
Application conditions

20

40
20

80

7

3

Conventional ACF
0

16

24

IC chip size: 0.9mm x 20mm x 0,2mmt;
glass substrate thickness 0.2mmt,
ITO-metal electrodes

0

2014
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Promotion of Sustainable Engineering
Basic Approach
Sustainable engineering is at the core of sustainable business, and represents the culmination of all the technologies of Hitachi Chemical, whereas business innovation is
the key to sustainable engineering. The Group aims to
increase corporate value and contribute to society, and
the environment through prioritizing the minimization of

our impact on the global environment at the R&D and
product planning and design stages.
We bring to market products that stand out for their
high performance and cost advantages to strengthen our
position in the increasingly competitive sustainable technology market.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
We monitor our progress with sustainable engineering
using a KPI which is the sales ratio of Eco-products to total
sales. There is a common definition of Eco-products for all
Hitachi Group companies. Eco-products are those that
are assessed as meeting a certain standard, based on the
following eight categories: Product functionality, Resource

saving, Recyclability, Safety of chemical substances, Green
chemistry, Environmental protection, Energy efficiency,
and Availability of information.
We set KPI for eligible products and technologies in
each business division and follow up attainment every
year at Group Environment and CSR Committee.

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Promoting Sustainable Engineering
The sales ratio of Sustainable Engineering products (Ecoproducts) reached 98.8% of sales in fiscal year 2014,
recording sharp growth as a result of revising the way we
calculate data for Eco-products and expediting new product registrations. We aim to attain a sales ratio of 98% or
higher in fiscal year 2015.
Sustainable Engineering Product Examples in Fiscal
Year 2014
Housing for power module
Optical clear filler material
Doping paste for photovoltaic cells
High heat-resistant glass epoxy prepreg/copper clad
laminates/shield sheet
Lead-acid batteries for power storage with control valve
for cyclic use

regulations that become tougher each year. Hitachi Chemical supplies various powder metal products for engines and
other auto parts that leverage powder metal technologies,
which allow a broad
range of shapes
and materials.
These products
are highly rated by
automakers, because they optimize the timing of
opening and clos- Sales targets and results
ing engine intake/ (on the index*)
2,200
exhaust valves to
Result
Target
reduce
exhaust
1,350
emissions and improve fuel efficien1,169
625
cy and output.
450
575

175

Lead-acid batteries for power storage with control valve
for high efficiency applications

100
2011

281
2012

2013

2014

2015
Target
(FY)

Lithium ion storage battery system

*Results are presented with targeted data of fiscal year
2011 as a base of 100.

Wavelength conversion particles

KPI Sales Ratio of Sustainable Engineering Products
Examples of Sustainable Engineering Products

Powder metal products for environmentally
friendly mobility and equipment that improves
fuel efficiency
Automakers are striving to improve their engines and develop hybrid and electric vehicles to comply with environmental
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(Eco-products): Results and Target
(%)

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014

FY2015 target

85.4

83.9

98.8

98+
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Delivering Safe and Easy-to-use Products
Basic Approach
Sourcing safe materials and maintaining a high standard
of safety and quality at all times to satisfy our diverse
business partners and customers amid the globalization
of our business is a priority for Hitachi Chemical.

We assure high quality and safety of our products in
materials and supply chain by risk management system of
the Group. It focuses on chemical risks and legal frameworks in each country and recognizes impacts of chemical
substances towards human health and environment.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical runs a long-term program to monitor
processes and carry out improvements under a quality
management system (QMS) to put the principles of our
quality assurance program into action, and to maintain

and improve our service that fulfills the globalizing needs
of our customers’ businesses.

Quality Management System (QMS)
•Needs
•Technical requirements

Customers

Manufacturing sites

Sales
division

•Product specifications
•A variety of documentation
for the exporting of products
(Safety data sheet (SDS),
product specification manual
and other materials)

Information flow with customers and suppliers

Purchasing
division

Quality assurance division
■

Internal audits Correction/prevention Customer satisfaction evaluation
■

Development
and design division
■

Manufacturing division

Development/improvement
■ Quality assessment

Product flow

Suppliers

■

■

■ Manufacturing
Shipment inspections ■ Delivery

Sharing information in-house and collaboration among divisions

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Management of chemical substances used in
our products
In 2011, Hitachi Chemical set up and began using a new
framework for centralized management of safety information of chemical substances and our product information.
In fiscal year 2014, the Group incorporated in its system a
feature that simplifies searches for the latest information
on laws and regulations governing chemical substances
around the world and hazard/toxicity data relevant to
substances contained in our chemical products and raw
materials. It has introduced the system at Group companies
in Japan and overseas. These features will be compliant
with new laws governing chemical substances that went
into effect in 2014 in South Korea and Taiwan that require
data compilation and reporting of chemical substances.

information in fiscal year 2014 to ensure that the fundamental causes and corrective measures of identified problems are communicated accurately to the relevant business
division. The quality assurance divisions and administration department of corporate management headquarters
check the efficacy of corrective measures and inform all
Group companies of the results of their follow-up.
In fiscal year 2014, we developed e-learning materials
for regular study of the theory of product liability as an
educational program for all domestic business sites. The
program will be made available to overseas business locations as well in fiscal year 2015.
KPI Customer Satisfaction Survey Results*
(%)

100

Ensuring against recurrence of product accidents
In fiscal year 2013, Hitachi Chemical set up a worldwide
network for communicating quality information. This has
facilitated the sharing of quality information and played a
big part in taking action quickly to resolve problems at
business sites and divisions in Japan and overseas. We
standardized formats and wording for communicating this

80

81.7

82.5

83.0

2012

2013

2014

60
40
20
0

(FY)

*Customer satisfaction rating values are simple averages of satisfaction rating
survey results carried out by Hitachi Chemical sites.
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Supply-chain Management
Basic Approach
In order to supply customers with superior products, it is
essential to procure materials that satisfy their requirements regarding quality, delivery time, price and advanced
technology. To that end, Hitachi Chemical strives to build
a robust supply chain by searching on a global basis for
suppliers that have strong operational and management
capabilities and can provide stable supplies. Furthermore,
in order to assure transactions with suppliers who
meet our evaluation criteria regarding quality control,

compliance systems and environmental protection measures, we obtain an accurate picture of their CSR by conducting audits and surveys. After the evaluation of the
suppliers regarding human rights, occupational health
and safety, compliance and protection of environment, if
there are areas need to be considered, we share our concerns and ask them to improve their situation so that we
can fulfil our corporate social responsibility in our supply
chain as a whole.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
In order to fulfill our social responsibilities in the supply
chain, Hitachi Chemical produces documents to deepen
mutual understanding between the Group and our suppliers. Based on the Hitachi Chemical Procurement Policy
and Hitachi Chemical Guidelines for Procurement Activities, we have produced the Hitachi Chemical Supply-Chain
CSR Deployment Guidebook and Green Procurement
Guidelines. When selecting a new supplier, we investigate
the suppliers from a CSR perspective in addition to product price and quality and creditworthiness. The general

manager
of
the procurement department verifies
all of the results of the
investigation.

Hitachi Chemical Supply-Chain CSR Deployment Guidebook

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
CSR procurement and audits
In fiscal year 2014 we distributed our Hitachi Chemical
Supply-Chain CSR Deployment Guidebook to around 400
major suppliers our Group companies do business with.
We asked some 200 key suppliers (accounting for 90% of
our total procurement value) to use a check sheet included in the Supply-Chain CSR Deployment Guidebook to
self-evaluate their CSR engagement. We received responses from approximately 60% of our suppliers by the
end of fiscal year 2014. Based on the results of this survey,
we visited suppliers and got them to understand our
thinking on issues such as human rights and the working
environment. Further, in order to confirm that we have a
system in place to receive a stable supply of high-quality
materials, each of the Company’s business sites conducts
an annual audit inspection of its suppliers. In fiscal year
2014, we audited of 73 suppliers.

determine the country of origin of the minerals used if
customers so request.
Section 1502 of the U.S. Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act was enacted with the aim
of cutting off sources of funding for armed insurgent
groups that inflict serious human rights abuses in the
Democratic Republic of the Congo and neighboring regions. Hitachi Chemical believes that the intent of this law
should be observed, and will continue to respond sincerely to any requests for investigations.
KPI Number of supplier audits*
100

96

89

80

73

60
40

Dealing with Conflict Minerals
In accordance with the Hitachi Chemical Procurement
Policy and the Hitachi Group Conflict Minerals Procurement Policy, the Group tracks the supply chain back to

20
0

2012

2013

2014

(FY)

*Non-consolidated
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Engaging in Environmental Management
Basic Approach
In its environmental management, Hitachi Chemical
focuses on the three pillars of Prevention of Global Warming, Conservation of Resources, and Preservation of Ecosystems, in line with the Hitachi Group Environmental
Vision. In accordance with the vision, Hitachi Chemical

has formulated the CSR Policy of the Hitachi Chemical
Group and the Hitachi Chemical Action Guidelines for
Environmental Conservation. The Group conducts business activities in full compliance with these policies.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical conducts self-assessment of all environmental activities. We use Green Points (GP) to measure
progress versus activity targets each fiscal year for each
business sites and the Group as a whole. We use these to
perform objective analysis, with the aim of continually
enhancing our environmental efforts. In fiscal year 2014,
the Group achieved a GP rating of 599, outperforming
the target of 576. There were large improvements in the
following categories: in Product Business Strategies due
to CO2 reductions from the back door module and promotion of the FRP recycling business; and in Eco Products
due to an expansion of Sustainable Engineering Products.
However, we did not achieve targets in the Supply Chain,
Global Warming, and Resource Recycling segments. In
fiscal year 2015 we aim to step up our activity with a
particular focus on the Supply Chain and Global Warming
segments.

GREEN21-2015 Assessment Radar Chart*
Environmental Management

84

Environmental
Cooperation
with Stakeholders 84

Resource Recycling

Product Business
Strategies

74

0

69

60

Supply Chain

20
64

40
75

60
Global Warming

80
100

Eco Mind

88

Eco Products

Result for FY2013 (533 GP)
Target for FY2014 (576 GP)
Result for FY2014 (599 GP)
*See P. 04, Note 3, for details on the scope of data aggregation.

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Reducing CO2 emissions accompanying products
and business activities
Hitachi Chemical participates in the Hitachi Group’s plan
to reduce CO2 emissions by 100 million tonnes annually by
the end of fiscal year 2025 through its products and services. During fiscal year 2014 Hitachi Chemical emitted
28% less CO2 associated with products and services and
CO2 emissions per unit of sales has improved by 2% at our
main manufacturing sites compared to fiscal year 2013.
Reduction of water use
Hitachi Chemical is active in working to reduce the volume
of water, particularly at overseas manufacturing sites. In
fiscal year 2014, we used 10.67 million m³ of water at our
main manufacturing sites, of which 1.71 million m³ was
consumed at overseas locations. Water use at our overseas sites has improved 63% (per-unit-of-sales basis)
compared to fiscal year 2005, the base year for such
measurements.

Steps to prevent air pollution
Hitachi Chemical works actively to cut its volatile organic
compound (VOC) emissions, a source of photochemical
oxidants. In fiscal year 2014 our main manufacturing sites
emitted 577 tonnes of VOC compounds*, a 67% reduction over the base year (FY2006). We also carefully manage air pollutants; effluent water quality; and noise, vibration, odor, and other emissions by periodically measuring
them at the business- and manufacturing-site level.
*41 substances designated by the Hitachi Group based on standards set by the Ministry
of Environment of Japan.

Related information: P. 04

KPI Environmental investment*
(Billions of yen)

2.0

1.78

1.5

1.23

1.0
0.46

0.5
0

2010

2011

2012

0.62

0.61

2013

2014

(FY)

*Aggregate data for 10 Group companies and 25 sites.
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Intellectual Property Strategy
Basic Approach
Hitachi Chemical regards intellectual property as an
important and indispensable asset in the execution of its
business strategy.
In order to increase corporate value in the medium
and long terms, we will acquire a firm grasp of valuable

technology that will enable us to attain a superior market
position. We will use this to build up a store of intellectual
property to be deployed aggressively and further
strengthen our technological capabilities and product
competitiveness.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical has established three patent policies
based on the principle of obtaining effective patents and
actively using these in Japan and overseas in line with its
business strategy. These policies are: to maintain superiority in products and technologies; to deal resolutely with
infringements of its patent rights; and to respect the
patent rights of other parties. Hitachi Chemical has relevant internal guidelines. Hitachi Chemical’s Intellectual
Property Strategy Office is in charge of intellectual property

related activities, and from fiscal year 2015 has managed
the entire Group’s intellectual property assets.
Further, Hitachi Chemical conducts ongoing educational activities for its employees, including those of Group
companies, to improve their awareness of intellectual
property matters.
Intellectual Property Educational Activities
Target

Contents of Main Educational Activities

Researchers
and engineers

Legal knowledge concerning patent applications
and patent rights
Preparation of patent specifications (exercise)
and dealing with reasons for patent rejection
Search for patent information

Intellectual Property Management System
President and CEO

New Business
Development
Headquarters

Tsukuba
Research Laboratory
Intellectual Property
Strategy Office

Sales personnel

Measures to prevent leaking of technical
information
Methods of utilizing patents in business activities

All employees

Basic knowledge related to intellectual property
(new employee training)
Measures to prevent leaking of technical information
Patent clearance (compliance)

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Maintaining superiority in products and technologies
Hitachi Chemical has implemented Patent Portfolio Management (PPM) in each of its technological and product
fields. Hitachi Chemical is building a global patent network highly effective in supporting its businesses and
maintaining the superiority of its products and technologies suited to their stage—early, developing or mature—
and competitive conditions.
Respecting other parties’ patent rights
Hitachi Chemical conducts detailed searches and analyses
of other parties’ technologies and patents from the R&D
stage onwards using a patent search system and experts
it has nurtured in-house. This facilitates the differentiation
of the Company’s own technologies while respecting the
intellectual property of other parties.
Dealing resolutely with patent right infringements
Using intellectual property, Hitachi Chemical takes rigorous action against parties that infringe its rights. In fiscal
year 2014 Hitachi Chemical Group’s intellectual property
generated royalties from external parties totaling over
¥1,600 million.
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Royalties Received
(Millions of yen)

2,000
1,500

1,395

1,348

1,389

2010

2011

2012

1,532

1,626

2013

2014

1,000
500
0

(FY)

KPI Number of Patent Application and Patent Held
2,983

3,000
2,582

2,500

2,205

2,371
2,406

1,957

2,000

2,040

1,500

1,734

1,000

788

500

698

0

2010

Number held
(Japan)

841

2,518

2,174

727

727

801

816

724

665

651

2011

2012

Number held
(Overseas)

Applications
(Japan)

2013

2014 (FY)

Applications
(Overseas)
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Development and Evaluation of
Globally-competitive Human Resources
Basic Approach
Human resources are an extremely important driving
force in corporate growth. Hitachi Chemical views human
resources reform as one of its three management reform
policies. As we expand on the global stage, we will

What Makes Hitachi Chemical
Different?
Hitachi Chemical views human resources who develop
the knowledge and skills to compete on the world stage,
repeatedly reflect on themselves, and achieve growth as
World Class Professionals (WCPs). The Group has been
standardizing its human resources management foundation by introducing educational programs to activate
communication skills as well as its Global Talent Standard
and Hitachi Global Grading.

improve Hitachi Chemical’s competitiveness even further
by having each employee share our management’s fundamental thinking and business direction so that all carry
out their duties with the same destination in mind.
Human Resources Reform Scenario
Activating Communication
Skills
Coaching
KT (Kepner-Tregoe) Method
English

Standardizing Human Resources
Management Foundation
Global Talent Standard
Human resources evaluation based on
Hitachi Chemical Group Vision

Hitachi Global Grading
Market value based position evaluation

New MBO
Measurement of performance to help
achieve objectives

Improvement in Creativity and Productivity through Development
of World Class Professionals

Human Resources Vision: World Class Professionals
Person who develops him/herself (self-sustaining) through
practice and review based on Hitachi Chemical’s unique
corporate philosophy and culture while continuously
improving his/her strengths (knowledge and skills)

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Global Leadership Forum
Hitachi Chemical holds Global Leadership Forum annually
which brings national management staff from overseas locations. In fiscal
year 2014, the Company
conducted a program to
encourage the participants to reflect on their
leadership and a roundtable discussion for Executive Officers.

Global Coaching Program
In order to keep offering innovative solutions, Hitachi
Chemical needs human resources with diverse skills to get
together and take on challenges while communicating
with one another. We have thus instituted a Global
Coaching Program.
Under the program
in-house coaches have
dialogues with five employees (stakeholders)
on several occasions,
encouraging their partners to take initiative in
their actions. In fiscal

year 2014 we trained 399 in-house coaches, and a total of
1,995 stakeholders from 12 countries and regions took
part in the program.
Using the KT (Kepner-Tregoe) Method
The KT Method is a problem-solving and decision-making
thought process. It has been introduced as a shared way
to communicate within the Hitachi Chemical Group, and
is used in discussions during meetings and for decision-making. By the end of fiscal year 2014, a total of
approximately 2,000 employees domestically and 1,100
overseas had completed the training.

KPI Global Coaching Program Participants
(Persons)

2,500
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(FY)
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Diversity Management
Basic Approach
Hitachi Chemical promotes diversity, viewing it as a management strategy to expand the Group’s overall potential
through innovations and solutions created by human resources with diverse skills, ideas and values.
In Japan in particular, promoting women’s participation
in the workplace is a critical issue. The Hitachi Chemical
Group is taking initiatives to increase the number of female employees overall, as well as those in management

positions. Further, in light of a rapidly globalizing business
environment, we think that it is important to actively recruit foreign nationals to obtain talented, highly creative
human resources with advanced technical skills.
Going forward, we will create a workplace environment
that offers job satisfaction and continue to provide opportunities for diverse human resources to display their talents
regardless of gender or nationality.

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Since fiscal year 2005, Hitachi Chemical has been expanding the number of women recruited for managerial positions. In fiscal year 2014 female employees accounted for
9% of overall managerial positions (non-consolidated),
and women in their 20s and 30s accounted for 17% of
the workforce. Compared with fiscal year 2010, the number of female managers has more than doubled. As
women participate in Hitachi Chemical Group’s new

product development and medium- and long-term management strategy development, there are greater opportunities to reflect their diverse values and viewpoints in
management policies.
Further, we are promoting career paths where each
individual can display their full range of talents regardless
of nationality, through global performance evaluation
standards.

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Diversity promotion system
In fiscal year 2014, Hitachi Chemical established a designated section for diversity promotion. With the active involvement of senior executives, this stepped up our initiatives regarding our corporate stance, environmental
awareness, and systems. Executive Officers led projects to
promote diversity such as reforming male managers’ and
female employees’ attitudes and expanding telecommuting. Further, after welcoming a female outside director in
fiscal year 2013, we appointed a non-Japanese outside
director in fiscal year 2014. Diverse viewpoints are being
reflected in our management.
In fiscal year 2014, we conducted a survey of approximately 7,000 domestic group employees regarding their
attitudes towards promoting diversity. Through regular
questionnaires in the future, we will measure results
quantitatively and operate a PDCA (plan, do, check, and
act) cycle.
Hiring of foreign nationals
Hitachi Chemical does not take nationality into account
when making decisions regarding the hiring and treatment of employees.
In order to recruit talented individuals the Group actively participates in career forums for exchange students
both overseas and in Japan. In fiscal year 2014 foreign
nationals accounted for 8% of new recruits in the management career stream.

Promoting employment of disabled people
Hitachi Chemical has been assigning disabled employees
to carry out an increasing range of jobs. The Company is
also improving its facilities to make them more accessible
to workers with a disability and offer them greater opportunities to participate in society.
In fiscal year 2014, disabled employees accounted for
2.39% on a domestic consolidated basis (more than 50
people at 17 companies) and 2.09% of the company’s
workforce (non-consolidated). Both of these ratios exceeded the Japanese legal requirement. Hitachi Chemical
will continue striving to provide more opportunities to
disabled people and share information within the Group.

(%)

Employment Ratio of Disabled People
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Japan, consolidated

2.13

1.97

2.18

2.27

2.39

Non-consolidated

2.19

1.93

2.02

2.06

2.09

FY

KPI Women in Management: Number and Proportion*
FY
Female managers
Proportion of
female managers (%)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

6

6

10

13

14

1.1

1.1

1.8

1.9

2.0

*Non-consolidated
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Interactive Communication with Stakeholders
Basic Approach
Hitachi Chemical has lively interactive communication
with its stakeholders. Through this we aim to become
aware of issues and implement measures to resolve them,
thus earning the understanding of our stakeholders and
appropriate valuations.
To us, information disclosure does not just mean releasing information in compliance with laws and regulations
and the timely disclosure provisions of securities exchanges where our shares are listed. We think that through
proactive disclosure of nonfinancial information, including
that dealing with environmental and social issues,
we eliminate the risk that we will lose the trust of our

stakeholders. At the same time, we see it as an opportunity to create an organization brimming with vitality.
Relations with Stakeholders
Shareholders
Investors
Global Environment

Hitachi Chemical
Governments and
Public Administration

Customers
Business Partners

Employees
Society

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
Hitachi Chemical discloses appropriate information regarding its business strategies, financial condition, and
CSR in a timely manner to gain the understanding of
shareholders and investors and ensure it is fairly valued. In
addition, through dialogue with analysts, shareholders
and investors the Company identifies issues and undertakes initiatives to address them. As of June 2015, Hitachi

Chemical is included in the following major Socially
Responsible Investment (SRI) indices.

Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
Survey of employee awareness
Hitachi Chemical surveyed all of its employees who had
an email address in fiscal year 2014 regarding corporate
culture and management systems. The Company also
surveyed its employees on diversity promotion.
In the survey on corporate culture and management
systems, the Company received feedback on the aspects
that need improving in its efforts to build the Hitachi
Chemical Group’s unique culture of dialogue and taking
on challenges.
The diversity survey was conducted to take diversity
further forward. Its results will be used to get a picture of
employees’ personal attitudes towards career advancement and the workplace environment, and as a base for
developing future policies.
Social contribution activities
Based on the notion that a company is a member of society, Hitachi Chemical is keen to promote social contribution activities to protect the environment and nurture the
next generation of human resources, with an emphasis
on communities it has close ties to.
In fiscal year 2014, 3,474 people took part in Hitachi
Chemical’s social contribution programs, which included

a chemistry workshop for kids featuring practical experiments, activities to promote “green curtains” (outdoor
window coverings using climbing vines to block the sun),
and reuse of abandoned farmland. A total of 1,040
employees were involved in the volunteer activities.

KPI Social Contribution Expenditure*
(Millions of yen)
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*Encompasses cash and in-kind donations, costs of providing company facilities for public use,
and the monetary value of time employees spent to participate in social contribution activities.
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Working On Wonders Beyond Boundaries
(WOW-BB) Activities
Basic Approach
Hitachi Chemical launched Working On Wonders Beyond
Boundaries (WOW-BB) activities in fiscal year 2013 to
work toward making the Hitachi Chemical Group Vision a
reality. As the business environment for the Group undergoes dramatic changes, the aim of the WOW-BB activities
is to facilitate the creation of products and services that
deliver wonders beyond the expectations of customers
and society. This entails breaking through our own limitations and developing an aggressive corporate culture,
gaining the ability to look ahead and read the future social
environment and anticipate customers’ needs from a
long-term viewpoint.

The WOW-BB book (2023 Corporate Brochure) was
distributed to all the Group employees to coincide with
the launch of the activities. It encapsulates the thinking of
top management regarding what the company business
should look like 10 years in the future. Hitachi Chemical is
taking on five challenges described in the book: 1) Have
the ability to identify needs; 2) Envision future scenarios;
3) Create the next core technologies; 4) Become a globally preferred company; and 5) Develop work styles that
allow for co-creation. These aim at making Hitachi
Chemical a company that delivers “wonders” for our
customers and society.

Positioning of WOW-BB Activities

Hitachi Chemical’s Group Identity

50th Anniversary Workshop

Mission

Founding spirits

Contribute to society through
the development of superior
technologies and products.

“Pioneering Spirit”
“Sincerity”
“Harmony”

•Management Message for the next 50 years
•Single Word Workshop

MISSION

WOW-BB book
VALUES

Ver.0

VISION

Toward Ver.X

•WOW-BB book
Hitachi Chemical Group Vision
With a pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas,
we develop innovative solutions beyond the
boundaries of chemistry, delivering “wonders” that
exceed the expectations of customers and society.

Brochure envisages the
Hitachi Chemical of
tomorrow and leads to
new ideas

•WOW Global Award
Program with full employee
participation aimed at creating
an aggressive corporate culture

•10-year strategy
Next Medium-term Management Plan
incorporating long-term perspectives

What Makes Hitachi Chemical Different?
The WOW Global Award was introduced to help create
an aggressive corporate culture. In contrast to other typical awards focused on results or outcomes, it focuses on
individual efforts to realize the Group Vision. It is a process-focused award that asks to what extent people put
words into deeds and how much these actions have driven corporate cultural change. Employees enter of their
own volition, and work in teams from launch until the
judging.
Having a forward-looking business approach, meanwhile, entails creating the next Medium-term Management Plan with a ten-year horizon focusing on coming up
with new businesses that will be viable into the future.
Focusing on its own area of responsibility, each business
division thinks seriously about what sort of changes could
occur down the road and develops a corresponding business strategy.
Annual Report 2015

Purpose of WOW-BB

Proactively creating and delivering what society is looking for

Marketing-based on self-discovery
Development of
original technologies

Scenario developed
with long-term perspective

Aggressive
corporate culture

Forward-looking
business approach

Hitachi Chemical becomes a powerful group with
a challenging spirit that continuously innovates,
building on individual initiatives
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Developments in Fiscal Year 2014
WOW Global Award 2014
We undertook the following activities in fiscal year 2014,
the first year of the WOW Global Award.
In April, at launch time, we distributed the WOW-BB
book (2023 Company Brochure) to all employees and
shared our thoughts about the challenges we face. Executive Officers talked to the employees directly about
WOW-BB activities at our company gathering at the start

of the fiscal year and town meetings, calling for them
to get actively involved. In May, each workplace ran
workshops considering the question, “what are our challenges?” with managers at the department head level
acting as facilitators. Ultimately, 937 teams from Japan
and overseas entered the competition in July. Each team
then started to work towards the target set in their particular thematic area.

Fiscal Year 2014 WOW Global Award Timeline
Fiscal year 2014
1Q (Apr.–Jun.)

2Q (Jul.–Sep.)

3Q (Oct.–Dec.)

4Q (Jan.–Mar.)

Company gathering/Town Meetings

WOW Global Award

Workshops
Entries
Work towards thematic targets

Citation

Award Judging

Global Award is designed to foster a challenge-oriented
corporate culture. There are three judging criteria:
1) How challenging the theme is (degree of difficulty):
two categories—innovation and originality
2) Process: four categories—putting words into deeds,
putting WOW into practice, ingenuity, and co-creation
3) Results: one category—degree of difficulty and
achievement

The first judging round (at individual workplaces) took
place in December; the second round (regional level) in
February; and the third round (document review by committee of company executives) in March. The final judging
took place in May 2015. Ultimately, some 11,500 employees took part in—representing 61% of the Group’s total
workforce.

Presentation conducted by
10 teams remaining in the judgment
4 teams won WOW Gold Award
6 teams won WOW Silver Award

Document review
by committee composed
of Executive Officers

Judging at individual locations
(business sites/companies)
937 teams narrowed
to 159

May

Final
Judging

3rd
round
Mar.

2015

1st
round

Feb.

Dec.

2014
Jun.–Jul.
entries

40 teams narrowed
to 10
30 teams selected
for WOW Bronze
Award

Entry: 937 teams
Registered theme names, leaders,
members
Set targets for December

2nd
round
Presentation committee judges, with world
divided into several blocs
159 teams narrowed to 40
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Corporate Governance
Hitachi Chemical maintains the highest standards of ethics and business integrity, fulfills its responsibility to
communicate effectively with its stakeholders, and engages in sound, transparent business management.

Strengthening Corporate Governance
Hitachi Chemical has adopted a company with committee
system structure. This separates the business execution and
oversight functions, and strengthens the oversight function
of the Board of Directors. This promotes objective and transparent management. Further, directors and auditors from
the Company are assigned as necessary to enhance oversight
at Group companies.
Hitachi Chemical is also bolstering its governance structure
to ensure that business activities are in accordance with laws
and regulations and its Articles of Incorporation. Hitachi
Chemical conducts regular internal audits of its business sites

and Group companies. In fiscal year 2014, we conducted
audits at 41 locations.
Furthermore, to ensure the reliability of its financial reports, the Group documents its performance in accordance
with the Standards for Management Assessment and Audit
Concerning Internal Control over Financial Reporting in
Japan. The Group also reports on the effectiveness of internal controls as stipulated in the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law. We regularly conduct operational audits and
monitor internal controls at Group companies, and support
improvements in the control environment.

Corporate Governance Structure (As of the end of June 2015)

General Meeting of Shareholders
Supervision

Board of Directors (9 Directors* including 6 outside Directors)
*2 of the 9 Directors also serve as Executive Officers

Nomination Committee

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

(5 Directors, of whom 4 are outside Directors)

(3 Directors, of whom 2 are Outside Directors)

(5 Directors, of whom 4 are outside Directors)

Decisions on proposals for election
and dismissal of Directors

Decisions on compensation of Directors
and Executive Officers

•Auditing

President and Chief Executive Officer
Senior Vice President and Executive Officer
Vice President and Executive Officer
Executive Officer

Execution

Corporate Management
Headquarters

Risk Management Center

of Directors and Executive
Officers’ execution of duties and
preparation of audit reports
•Decisions on proposals to appoint or
dismiss Independent Auditors

Independent Auditor
(Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC)

Executive Officers’ Meeting
(Chief Executive Officer’s advisory body)
Considers issues of importance which may affect
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
or the Hitachi Chemical Group

Auditing Office

Directors’ Compensation
Hitachi Chemical aims to ensure that Directors’ compensation is appropriate and provides incentives for Directors to
execute their duties. To this end, there are two principal
policies on which compensation is based: 1) with an emphasis on business results, compensation should motivate management of the Company in a way that increases corporate
value in the medium and long terms as well as the short
term; and 2) it should be competitive enough to attract and
retain talented personnel from diverse backgrounds. The
Compensation Committee meets yearly to discuss policies
regarding setting Directors’ and Executive Officers’ compensation and consider compensation levels. Directors’ compensation consists of a monthly base salary and term-end bonus,
while Executive Officers’ compensation consists of a monthly
base salary and performance-based rewards.

Annual Report 2015

Director compensation at Hitachi Chemical (FY2014)
Type of Management
Position

Executive
Officer

Outside
Director

40

568

87

36

373

76

Performance-based Reward
and term-end Bonus

5

194

11

Retirement Bonus

—

—

—

4

13

7

Type of Compensation

Total Compensation (in million yen)
Monthly Base Salary
Compensation
by Category
(in million yen)

Director
(excl. Outside
Director)

Number of Eligible Directors

*The amounts are rounded off for digits lower than the million.
*The amounts of compensations for Directors who also serve as Executive Officers
consist of those for Directors and those for Executive Officers and are included in
the chart accordingly.
*2 of 4 Directors (excluding Outside Directors) serve also as Executive Officers.
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CSR Promotion System
Under our CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2, Hitachi
Chemical promotes CSR activities involving all divisions working together horizontally—not just the traditional CSR related areas of environmental safety, quality assurance and
social contribution. In April 2015, the Corporate Business
Strategy Headquarters, Corporate Management Headquarters, and Risk Management Center jointly conducting
CSR activities to promote CSR awareness as part of the Company’s corporate strategy.
The Group Environment and
CSR Committee meets every
quarter. They discuss the
Group’s principal shared
policies for CSR management and deliberates and
makes decisions regarding

Risk Management
The Hitachi Chemical Risk Management Implementation
Guidelines developed by the Company specify risks that the
Company must be prepared for and require all Directors,
Executive Officers and employees to mitigate risks. The
guidelines clearly specify standards for establishing the
Emergency Response Headquarters, team members, required actions and communication standards in case of an
emergency. Risks that could have a particularly severe impact
on operations are identified and reported to the Executive
Officers’ Meeting and Board of Directors’ Meeting, as well as
disclosed in Securities Reports. The Risk Management Center
contains an internal audit section that reports directly to the
President and CEO and operates independently of other divisions in close cooperation with the Audit Committee.

important items. They also track progress of implementation
of the CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2.
CSR Promotion System
President and CEO
Group Environment and CSR Committee
Corporate
Business Strategy
Headquarters

Business Strategy and Development Department

Corporate
Management
Headquarters

CSR Quality Assurance Department

Finance and Accounting Department

Environment & Safety Management Department
Corporate Communication Center
Human Resources & Administration Center

Business Divisions, Business
Sites, Group Companies

Risk Management Center

Risk Management System

Board of Directors Meeting
Audit Committee
President and CEO
Corporate Management Headquarters
CSR Quality Assurance Department
Environment & Safety Management Department

Business Divisions,
Business Sites

Corporate Communication Center
Human Resources & Administration Center

Risk Management Center
Corporate Export Regulation & Control Group

Group
Companies

Compliance and BCM Group
Group Management Promotion Group
Auditing Office

Compliance Concepts
Compliance is at the heart of Hitachi Chemical’s CSR activities. We define compliance as more than just strict adherence
to laws and regulations. We understand compliance to include observance of and improving the ability to adhere to
voluntary industry standards, corporate ethics, social norms
and each individual employee’s good judgment.
To ensure that all employees understand the Hitachi
Chemical Codes of Conduct, including the possibility of punishment for violations, the Company conducts extensive education campaigns. These include e-learning programs and
case study seminars at all of the Group’s companies in Japan
and overseas. Further, to explain the Codes of Conduct in an
easy-to-understand manner, the Company has produced the
Hitachi Chemical Group Codes of Conduct Handbook in
Japanese, English, and Chinese (in simplified and traditional
characters) which is distributed to all employees at Group
companies worldwide. Employees are asked to review the
contents regularly through group readings and other means.

In the unlikely event that there is a breach of laws or regulations, employees are required to report immediately to predetermined relevant departments and consult with legal advisors
to enable a speedy resolution and prevent recurrences.
Further, the Group has established Hitachi Chemical Hotline. This gives employees direct access to report or seek advice
regarding any compliance related issues. In fiscal year 2014,
there were 34 cases of reports and consultations using the
hotline in Japan and from abroad. However, none of these
involved a serious breach of laws or regulations. The Company
is particularly careful to protect personal information to
prevent whistleblowers from suffering potential negative
repercussions.
Number of Consultation and Whistle-blowing Calls
FY2010

FY2011

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014

24

24

16

15

34
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Compliance Training and Audits
New employees and midcareer recruits undergo CSR, compliance, and human rights training without exception when
they join the Company.
In addition, in fiscal year 2014 the Risk Management
Center conducted 41 training sessions (30 in Japan and 11
overseas). These were open to all employees and attended
by 3,137 participants.

The Risk Management Center also periodically audits the
compliance situation at Company business locations and
Group companies. During fiscal year 2014, it visited three
sites in Japan and six overseas. These confirmed the management structure and status of training, and gave guidance on
areas for improvement. The results were reported to management. It plans to audit 13 Group companies (five in Japan
and eight overseas) in fiscal year 2015.

Strict Compliance with Antimonopoly Act
Hitachi Chemical views strict observance of the Antimonopoly Act as a critical compliance issue. The Company has produced and distributed an Antimonopoly Act Handbook.
During Corporate Ethics Month, the President and CEO delivers a message directly to employees calling for strict compliance with the Act. Furthermore, if there are concerns of even
a slight breach of the Act, employees are required to record
the details in Compliance Information Record Notebook. The
division in charge of compliance audits the notebook twice

yearly. In July 2014
a lawyer conducted Antimonopoly
Act workshops for
all employees, with
882 attendees.

Antimonopoly Act Workshop

The Hitachi Chemical Group is under investigation by the competition authorities in Japan, Europe, the U.S., and several other countries
and regions on suspicion of anticompetitive practices in aluminum electrolytic capacitors. The Company booked provisions sufficient to
cover a reasonably foreseeable amount for the likely possibility that surcharges are levied.

Ensuring Strict Adherence to Information Security Policies
Under its Information Security Policy, Hitachi Chemical protects personal data and information under an integrated
management framework. The Company uses shared Hitachi
Group network infrastructure built by Hitachi, Ltd. that ensures a sophisticated level of security. We have installed antivirus and encryption software as well as email and web
filtering systems to prevent information leakage from computers and other information appliances and external storage
media. Further, we conduct education and training and
annual audits to maintain and enhance information security.

In fiscal year 2014, Hitachi Chemical used an audit checklist provided by Hitachi, Ltd. regarding information security
and personal data protection. There were self audits at
the divisional level at 11 Hitachi Chemical sites in Japan as
well as at 19 Hitachi Chemical and domestic Group companies. In addition, 37 overseas Group companies conducted
global security self checks using materials provided by
Hitachi, Ltd.

Information Security Organization

President and CEO
Information Security Committee
Chairperson: CISO*
Commissioners
Information Security
Educational Chief
Information Security Chief
Auditor
Information Security
Directive Auditor
Commissioners nominated
by CISO

The Committee performs the five
following activities about personal
information protection and
information security:
- Risk management
- Deployment of policy
- Implementation of measures
- Planning and promotion of
education
- Conduct audits of the Group

Secretariat (Risk Management Center)

Information Security Organization at Sites
Person in Charge of Information Security
Persons responsible for
information security

Information Asset
Managers

Information Security Auditors

Managerial Agency

Information System Owners
Physical Security Manager
Contact for External Affairs
Information Security Promoting Division

Group Companies
* CISO: Chief Information Security Officer
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Directors and Executive Officers (as of the end of June 2015)

Takashi Kawamura

Shigeru Azuhata

Yoshio Osawa

Chieko Matsuda

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Kazuyoshi Tsunoda

Directors
Takashi Kawamura
Chairman of the Board
Outside Director
(Chairman Emeritus, Hitachi, Ltd.)

Shigeru Azuhata
Outside Director
(Fellow, Hitachi, Ltd.)
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SIX-YEAR SUMMARY
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).The date of
transition to IFRS is April 1, 2013.
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note 1)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2015
(IFRS)

2014
(IFRS)

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2015
(IFRS)

2010

For the year:
Revenue/Net sales*

¥ 525,061 ¥ 488,725 ¥ 533,955 ¥ 493,766 ¥ 464,655 ¥ 473,069 ¥ 497,452 ¥ 455,287 $4,375,508

Operating income

29,226

36,569

35,144

27,775

23,559

24,495

43,471

38,341

243,550

Net income

22,867

29,144

21,101

24,103

18,818

16,427

18,943

23,509

190,558

7,497

7,497

7,497

7,497

7,913

7,497

7,497

6,664

62,475

Capital expenditures

Cash dividends

26,620

31,935

26,643

33,492

46,698

37,347

30,432

20,984

221,833

Depreciation and amortization

27,271

24,626

27,103

24,453

25,255

28,240

28,985

31,666

227,258

Research and
development expenses

26,920

26,234

26,920

26,234

25,534

25,680

26,382

25,402

224,333

At year-end:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
(Note 2)
Total equity/Total net assets*
(Stockholders’ equity)

¥ 542,535 ¥494,724 ¥ 555,071 ¥ 508,080 ¥ 477,880 ¥ 440,981 ¥ 432,184 ¥ 426,586 $4,521,125
185,201

173,936

183,174

171,694

164,476

153,742

141,873

143,984

1,543,342

62,685

58,191

62,170

57,590

51,077

40,856

27,151

24,557

522,375

357,334

320,788

371,897

336,386

313,404

287,239

290,311

282,602

2,977,783

Per share data:
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent/
Net income* (basic)
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent/
Net income* (diluted)
Cash dividends
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent/Net assets*

¥ 108.47 ¥ 141.49 ¥ 101.33 ¥ 115.74 ¥

90.36 ¥

78.88 ¥

90.96 ¥ 112.88 $

0.90

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

36.00

36.00

36.00

36.00

38.00

36.00

36.00

32.00

0.30

1,672.33

1,512.06

1,743.32

1,588.09

1,474.11

1,359.33

1,320.30

1,289.11

13.94

Value indicators:
Operating margin (%)

5.6

7.5

6.6

5.6

5.1

5.2

8.7

8.4

Return on revenue/sales* (%)

4.4

6.0

4.0

4.9

4.0

3.5

3.8

5.2

Return on equity attributable
to owners of the parent/
Return on equity* (ROE) (%)

6.8

9.9

6.1

7.6

6.4

5.9

7.0

9.1

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

4.4

6.1

4.0

4.9

4.1

3.8

4.4

5.7

Net worth ratio
(Ratio of equity attributable
to owners of the parent to
total assets)/(Stockholders’
equity ratio)* (%)

64.2

63.6

65.4

65.1

64.2

64.2

63.6

62.9

Debt/Equity attributable to
owners of the parent ratio
Debt/Equity ratio* (DER)
(times)

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

Inventory turnover (times)

9.4

9.9

9.6

10.1

10.4

11.7

13.2

12.7

19,499

18,149

19,499

18,149

17,732

16,713

15,930

15,267

Number of employees

*Terms are used for Japanese GAAP.
Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥120=US$1,
the approximate exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2015.
2. Interest-bearing liabilities include trade notes discounted.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview of Economic Trends and Business Results
During the fiscal year ended March 2015, in the global economy, economic growth in the U.S. continued on improvement in
employment conditions, while in Europe the initial economic
stagnation turned to signs of recovery. In developing nations,
economic growth slowed in China and certain other countries,
but the economy expanded overall.
In Japan, the economy was sluggish during the first half as
a result of the effects of the April 2014 consumption tax hike,
but corporate earnings improved afterward on the fall in oil
prices and the weaker yen, resulting in a recovery trend.
In such an economic climate, the Hitachi Chemical Group,
to establish a strong management foundation to achieve sustainable growth, under the Medium-term Management Plan
that began from FY3/14, took steps to create new products and
businesses, expand business in growth fields through M&A and
other means, and build a robust group structure aimed at concentrating management resources and strengthening and expanding global businesses, as well as to assiduously implement
measures to further reduce costs and cut fixed expenses. Specifically, in the field of next-generation semiconductor packaging
materials, in June 2014 we established an “open laboratory”
within the Advanced Performance Materials Business Headquarters, with the aim of establishing a business model based
on collaboration with our main customers and equipment manufacturers to jointly develop new materials and processes, and
expand orders. In addition, to accelerate global development
and expansion of the group’s energy storage devices business in
January 2015 we acquired shares in CSB Battery Co., Ltd., making the company a consolidated subsidiary, while on April 1,
2015, we established regional headquarters in the U.S. and
Thailand, putting in place a structure able to respond flexibly to
the market characteristics and changes in those countries and
the surrounding regions. Further, to establish a resilient management and business structure that will allow the Hitachi
Chemical Group to survive and continue to grow amid fierce
global competition, we implemented a restructuring program
including a call for voluntary early retirement, and took steps to
strengthen our earnings capability.
As a result of the above measures and the effect of foreign
exchange rates, revenues for the subject fiscal year increased
7.4% to ¥525,061 million. Operating income decreased 20.1%
to ¥29,226 million and net income decreased 21.5% to
¥22,867 million, mainly as a result of the recording of other
expenses, including extra retirement payments and outplacement support expenses stemming from the implementation of
a voluntary early retirement program.

Revenue
Consolidated revenues rose 7.4% from the previous fiscal year
to ¥525,061 million. This mainly reflected demand captured in
the growing smartphone field, along with the boost from M&A
activities.
In the Functional Materials segment, revenue amounted to
¥275,769 million yen, an increase of 5.6% from the previous
fiscal year.
In the electronics materials field, revenue of epoxy molding
compounds for semiconductors rose on robust demand in the
semiconductor market. Revenue of die bonding materials for
semiconductors increased on firm demand for smartphones
and other devices. Revenue of slurry for chemical mechanical
planarization decreased on slower demand from certain customers. Revenue of varnishes were on a par with the previous
fiscal year, reflect stable demand for automobiles.
In the inorganic materials field, revenue of carbon anode
materials for lithium-ion batteries rose from eco-friendly automobiles. Revenue of carbon products increased on growth in
revenue of rolling stock brushes.
In the polymer science materials field, revenue of functional
resins increased on positive demand for hardening agents for
heavy electric machinery and automobiles. Revenue of anisotropic conductive films for displays were on a par with the previous
fiscal year, reflecting stable demand for smartphones. Revenue
of touch panel supporting materials decreased on sluggish demand from certain customers. Revenue of adhesive films increased, reflecting a recovery in demand for use in surface protection of the optical sheets used in LCDs.
In the printed wiring board materials field, sales of
copper-clad laminates for printed wiring boards rose on increased revenue for smartphones. Revenue of photosensitive
dry films for printed wiring boards increased on higher revenue
for use in smartphones.
In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, revenue amounted to ¥249,292 million, an increase of 9.6% from
the previous fiscal year.

Revenue (Net Sales)*
Billions of yen

800

600
497.5

473.1 464.7 493.8

534.0

488.7

525.1

400

200

0

11

12

13

14

Japanese GAAP

15

14

15

IFRS
Years ended March 31

*Terms in parentheses are used for Japanese GAAP.
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In the automotive products field, revenue of plastic molded
products, friction materials, and powder metal products increased mainly as a result of the contribution from revenue by
overseas subsidiaries.
In the energy storage devices and systems field, revenue of
vehicle batteries were on a par with the previous fiscal year, as
declining production among domestic automakers was offset
by higher revenue at overseas locations. Revenue of industrial
batteries and systems increased as a result of CSB Battery Co.,
Ltd. being consolidated as a subsidiary. Revenue of capacitors
were on a par with the previous fiscal year, with stable revenue
centered on use in wind power and photovoltaic power generation systems.
In the electronics components field, revenue of printed wiring boards increased on expanded revenue for use in smartphones and other devices.
In the “others” field, revenue of diagnostics and instruments
declined on a falloff in revenue of allergy diagnostic reagents.
Overseas revenue amounted to ¥282,147 million, an increase of ¥32,486 million, or 13.0% from the previous fiscal
year. The proportion of overseas revenue expanded to 53.7%,
an increase of 2.6 percentage points from a year earlier.

Operating Income
Operating income decrease 20.1% from the previous fiscal year
to ¥29,226 million, mainly as a result of the recording of other
expenses, including business structure expenses stemming from
the implementation of a voluntary early retirement program
and outplacement support. The operating income margin
declined 1.9 percentage points to 5.6% from 7.5% in the previous fiscal year.
In the Functional Materials segment, segment profit declined 8.3% from the previous fiscal year to ¥23,494 million.
The segment profit margin declined 1.3 percentage points to
8.5%.
In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, segment profit declined 46.7% from the previous fiscal year to
¥5,846 million. The segment profit margin declined 2.5 percentage points to 2.3%.
As a result, income before income taxes declined 12.1% to
¥34,692 million, from ¥39,463 million in the previous fiscal
year.

Net Income
Income taxes increased 14.6% to ¥11,825 million, from
¥10,319 million in the previous fiscal year. As a result, net income amounted to ¥22,867 million, a decrease of 21.5% from
¥29,144 million in the previous fiscal year. Return on equity
attributable to owners of the parent (ROE) declined 3.1 percentage points to 6.8%, return on assets (ROA) declined 1.7 percentage points to 4.4%. Net income attributable to owners of
the parent per share (basic) fell to ¥108.47 per share, from
¥141.49 in the previous fiscal year.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses
Cost of sales amounted to ¥396,908 million, an increase of
¥27,943 million, or 7.6% compared with the previous fiscal
year. This mainly reflected the increase in revenue, and higher
raw material expenses as a result of the weaker yen. The cost of
sales to total net sales edged up 0.1 percentage points to
75.6%, from 75.5% in the previous fiscal year.
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses
amounted to ¥91,120 million, an increase of ¥2,243 million, or
2.5% from the previous fiscal year. SG&A expenses as a ratio to
total revenue declined 0.8 percentage points to 17.4%, from
18.2% in the previous fiscal year, due mainly to the introduction
of a voluntary early retirement program.

Operating Income /
Operating Margin

Net Income / Net Income Attributable
to Owners of the Parent per Share
(Net Income per Share)* (Basic)

Billions of yen

%

20

80

60

Yen

%

80

200

20

Net income
Net income attributable to owners of the
parent per share (Net income per share)*
(basic) (right scale)

15

60

10

40 90.96

141.49

115.74

43.5
40

36.6

35.1
7.5 29.2
6.6
5.6
5
5.6

8.7
24.5 23.6
20

0

11

12

13

78.88

14

15

Japanese GAAP

14

15
IFRS

Years ended March 31

0

12

13

15

14

Japanese GAAP

15

14

7.6

7.0
22.9

21.1

9.9

10

29.1

20 18.9 16.4 18.8

11

150

100

101.33
24.1

0

ROE
ROA

108.47

90.36

27.8

5.1

5.2

Return on Equity Attributable to Owners
of the Parent (Return on Equity)* (ROE) /
Return on Assets (ROA)

Billions of yen

Operating income
Operating margin
(right scale)

48

15
IFRS

Years ended March 31

5.9
50

5

0

0

4.4

11

6.1 6.1

6.4

3.8

4.1

12

13

4.9

14

Japanese GAAP

4.4

4.0

15

6.8

14

15
IFRS

Years ended March 31

*Terms in parentheses are used for Japanese GAAP.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets

Cash Flows

Total assets at March 31, 2015, stood at ¥542,535 million, an
increase of ¥47,811 million compared with the previous fiscal
year-end. This was due mainly to increase in current assets
reflected increases in trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2015, stood at ¥88,997
million, an increase of ¥1,345 million from the end of the previous fiscal year.
Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to
¥34,009 million, a decrease of ¥16,348 million from the previous fiscal year. This was due mainly to an increase in payments
for business restructuring expenses.
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥22,258
million, a decrease of ¥14,841 million from the previous fiscal
year. This was due mainly to a decrease in expenses for property,
plant and equipment acquired.
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥16,874
million, an increase of ¥14,500 million from the previous fiscal
year. This was due mainly to an increase in purchase of shares of
consolidated subsidiaries from noncontrolling interest holders.

Liabilities

Total liabilities amounted to ¥185,201 million, an increase of
¥11,265 million compared with the end of the previous fiscal
year. This was due mainly to increases in bonds and borrowings,
and a ¥16,198 million increase in current liabilities.
Equity

Total equity amounted to ¥357,334 million, an increase of
¥36,546 million year on year.
This was due mainly to increase of ¥33,365 million in total
equity attributable to owners of the parent, reflected increases
in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Capital Expenditures, R&D Expenses

Cash Flows
Years ended March 31

Total capital expenditures amounted to ¥26,620 million, a
decrease of ¥5,315 million from the previous fiscal year. This
mainly reflected the limiting of investments to select businesses
based on return on invested capital (ROIC) standards. Overseas
capital expenditures comprised 35.7% of the total, down from
48.6% a year earlier.
R&D expenses totaled ¥26,920 million, a slight increase
from ¥26,234 million in the previous fiscal year. This represented 5.1% of total revenue, down 0.3 percentage points year
on year.

Billions of yen

2015

2014

Cash flows from operating activities

¥34.0

¥50.4

Cash flows from investing activities

(22.3)

(37.1)

Cash flows from financing activities

(16.9)

(2.4)

89.0

87.7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Total Assets

Capital Expenditures /
Depreciation and Amortization

Research and Development (R&D)
Expenses / Ratio of R&D Expenses
to Revenue (Net Sales)*

Billions of yen

Billions of yen

Billions of yen

%

800

60

40

12
Research and development (R&D) expenses
Ratio of R&D expenditures to revenue (net sales)*
(right scale)

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

46.7
600
432.2 441.0

477.9

508.1

555.1
494.7

542.5

26.9
26.4 25.7
25.5 26.2

37.3

11

12

13

14

Japanese GAAP

15

14

15

IFRS
Years ended March 31

*Terms in parentheses are used for Japanese GAAP.
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The Hitachi Chemical Group, in accordance with its
Medium-term Management Plan that will conclude at the end
of FY3/16, will expertly reap the benefits of the various measures enacted for global growth, and will steadily implement
measures to establish a solid business foundation able to respond flexibly to changing circumstances.
For the consolidated fiscal year ending March 31, 2016, the
Hitachi Chemical Group is forecasting revenue of ¥570.0 billion,
with operating income of ¥55.0 billion, income before income
taxes of ¥56.0 billion, net income of ¥39.0 billion, and net income attributable to owners of the parent of ¥38.5 billion.

BASIC POLICY ON APPROPRIATION OF EARNINGS
DIVIDEND FORECAST FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
MARCH 31, 2016
Hitachi Chemical considers its operating environment, performance, future business prospects, and the payout ratio in
allocating earnings to dividends and internal capital reserves.
The Company uses internal capital reserves to effectively build
on its strong financial structures while investing in the R&D of
promising new high-value-added products and adding vitality
to existing businesses.
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Company paid
a year-end cash dividend of ¥18 per share. Combined with the
payment of the second quarter dividend of ¥18 per share,
the annual dividend was ¥36 per share. The dividend forecasts
for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016 have not been
determined.
OUTLOOK AND FORECASTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDING MARCH 31, 2016
The US economy is expected to present solid growth, though
concerns remain over the strong dollar and the effects that
financial policy will have on the economy, while the recovery in
the European economy lacks strength, and is expected to be no
more than moderate. In China and other developing countries’
economic growth is expected to remain sluggish, while unstable conditions in the Middle East and other geopolitical risks
remain present. Further, the outlook for the Japanese economy
despite expectations for continued recovery centered on consumer spending and capital investment, remains unclear due to
the lack of vitality and other factors.

Total Equity (Total Net Assets)* / Ratio of Equity
Attributable to Owners of the Parent to Total Assets
(Stockholders’ Equity Ratio)* (Net Worth Ratio)

Interest-bearing Liabilities / Debt /
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Ratio (Debt / Equity Ratio)* (DER)

Cash Dividends per Share

Billions of yen

Billions of yen

%

Yen

0.4

40

800

600

%

Total net assets
Ratio of equity attributable to owners
of the parent to total assets (Stockholders’
equity ratio)* (Net worth ratio) (right scale)

63.6 64.2 64.2 65.1 65.4 63.6 64.2

400
290.3 287.2

313.4 336.4
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Interest-bearing liabilities
Dept / Equity attributable to owners of the parent
ratio (Debt / Equity ratio)* (DER) (right scale)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

BUSINESS AND OTHER RISKS

(5) Public Regulations

Hitachi Chemical operates globally in a diverse range of fields,
using sophisticated, specialized technologies. For this reason,
a variety of factors may materially impact Group operations.
These major business and other risks are described below.
Statements concerning the future represent the judgment of
Hitachi Chemical as of March 31, 2015.

Hitachi Chemical’s business activities are subject to various regulations in the countries in which it operates. The regulations
include legal obligations related to foreign investment, trade,
competition, intellectual properties, taxes, exchange rates, the
environment, and recycling. Significant changes to these regulations could restrict operations, increase costs, and exert a
material impact on Group performance.

(1) Exchange Rate Fluctuations

(6) Financial Risk

Hitachi Chemical holds assets and liabilities from overseas
operations that are affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. Due to product exports and raw material imports usually
denominated in U.S. dollars, and at times in other local currencies, exchange rate fluctuations may exert a material impact on
the performance of the Group. The appreciation of the yen
against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may exert a material
impact on earnings by weakening the competitiveness of products exported to overseas markets. The Group pursues measures to attenuate the risk from exchange rate fluctuations, but
cannot guarantee that exchange rate fluctuations will not affect
performance.

(2) Major Raw Material Price Fluctuations
Many of Hitachi Chemical’s products use petrochemical products as raw materials. The purchase prices of petrochemical
products are susceptible to fluctuations in crude oil prices. In
addition, fluctuations in the markets for other raw materials
and export regulations in producing countries may increase
procurement costs or make it difficult to procure the necessary
quantities. These factors may exert a material impact on Group
performance.

(3) Acquisitions, Joint Ventures, and Strategic Alliances
Hitachi Chemical may acquire outside companies, establish joint
ventures, and implement strategic alliances in order to develop
new technologies and products, and raise competitiveness.
These complex initiatives involve integration of businesses,
technologies, products, and personnel that requires time and
expense. Failure to implement these initiatives as planned may
exert a material impact on Group operations. The success of
these business alliances is determined in part by factors beyond
the Group’s control including alliance partner decisions and
capabilities, and market trends. Implementation of these initiatives may cause the Group to incur acquisition-related expenses
including expenses for integration and restructuring of acquired
businesses. In addition, the Group cannot guarantee that it will
succeed in integrating acquired businesses or that its initiatives
will achieve all or part of initial objectives.

(4) Potential Risks in Overseas Activities
Hitachi Chemical produces and sells products in Japan, countries in Asia, the United States, and in other regions. Exposure
to political and social risks in these overseas markets may exert
a material impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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Hitachi Chemical holds equities and other marketable securities.
A decrease in the value of these marketable securities may exert
a material impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group. In addition, long-term procurement of funds from
capital markets exposes the Group to risk associated with interest rate fluctuations and credit.

(7) Retirement Benefit Obligations
Hitachi Chemical bears considerable retirement benefit expense
obligations that are computed using actuarial calculations.
These appraisals involve important assumptions about conditions for estimating the fair value of pension assets including
mortality rates, decrement rates, retirement rates, salary changes, discount rates, and expected rates of return on pension
assets. In making these assumptions, the Group must take into
account numerous factors including personnel conditions,
current market conditions, and future interest rate trends.
Although the Group makes reasonable assumptions about
conditions based on key factors, it cannot guarantee that projections will agree with actual results. Lower discount rates lead
to an increase in actuarial retirement benefit obligations.
Accordingly, changes in conditions may exert a material impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.

(8) Relationship with the Parent Company
As of March 31, 2015, Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company of
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., holds 51.2 percent of the Company’s total number of shares issued and 51.4 percent of the total
number of shares with voting rights (exclusive of indirect shareholdings). Hitachi, Ltd. oversees numerous associated companies, and engages in a wide variety of operations covering the
manufacture, sale, and service of products in seven groups:
Infrastructure Systems, Information & Telecommunication Systems, Power Systems, Construction Machinery, High Functional
Materials & Components, Automotive Systems and Healthcare.
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. is part of the Hitachi Group’s High
Functional Materials & Components, and two of its nine Directors serve concurrently as Director or Executive Officer of Hitachi, Ltd. (as of June 19, 2015). The close relations between Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its parent company in areas
including technical and personnel cooperation and product
supply may lead to situations in which Hitachi Group developments exert a material impact on the management strategy and
other policies of Hitachi Chemical.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2015 and 2014
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2015

2014

2015

¥ 88,997

¥ 87,652

$ 741,642

123,949

108,224

1,032,908

61,909

50,218

515,908

Other financial assets

23,659

23,958

197,158

Other current assets

2,324

1,931

19,367

300,838

271,983

2,506,983

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Inventories

(Note 3)

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment

(Note 4)

179,196

168,855

1,493,300

Intangible assets

(Note 5)

12,301

7,335

102,508

Net defined benefit assets

(Note 8)

10,093

5,116

84,108

Deferred tax assets

(Note 6)

10,684

13,681

89,033

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

5,216

6,960

43,467

17,591

15,054

146,592

6,616

5,740

55,133

241,697

222,741

2,014,142

542,535

494,724

4,521,125

51,354

49,619

427,950

33,658

25,269

280,483

24,251

21,929

202,092

6,758

5,288

56,317

500

—

4,167

Other financial liabilities

19,702

15,960

164,183

Other current liabilities

1,471

3,431

12,258

137,694

121,496

1,147,450

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Trade payables
Bonds and borrowings

(Note 7)

Accrued expenses
Income tax payables
Provisions

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds and borrowings

(Note 7)

26,619

30,563

221,825

Retirement and severance benefits

(Note 8)

13,345

16,260

111,208

Provisions

1,143

1,117

9,525

Other financial liabilities

3,051

2,835

25,425

Other non-current liabilities

(Note 6)

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

3,349

1,665

27,908

47,507

52,440

395,892

185,201

173,936

1,543,342

15,454

15,454

128,783

10,498

12,013

87,483

Equity:
Common stock
Capital surplus
Treasury stock, at cost
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

(Note 9)

(213)
287,498

(200)
272,009

(1,775)
2,395,817

35,004

15,600

291,700

348,241

314,876

2,902,008

9,093

5,912

75,775

357,334

320,788

2,977,783

¥542,535

¥494,724

$4,521,125

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

(Consolidated Statement of Income)
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

Revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

2015

2014

2015

¥525,061

¥488,725

$4,375,508

(396,908)

(368,965)

(3,307,567)

128,153

119,760

1,067,942

(91,120)

(88,877)

(759,333)

Other income

(Note 10)

11,727

12,190

97,725

Other expenses

(Note 10)

(19,534)

(6,504)

(162,783)
243,550

Operating income

29,226

36,569

Financial income

(Note 12)

3,804

1,937

31,700

Financial expenses

(Note 12)

(1,769)

(1,521)

(14,742)

Share of profits of investments accounted for using the equity method
Income before income taxes
Income taxes

(Note 6)

Net income

3,431

2,478

28,592

34,692

39,463

289,100

(11,825)

(10,319)

(98,542)

¥ 22,867

¥ 29,144

$ 190,558

¥ 22,587

¥ 29,464

$ 188,225

280

(320)

2,333

Net income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Yen

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent:
Basic

U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2015

2014

¥ 108.47

¥ 141.49

—

—

Diluted

2015

$

0.90
—

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

Net income

2015

2014

2015

¥22,867

¥29,144

$190,558

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that cannot be reclassified into profit or loss:
Net gains and losses from financial assets measured at fair value
through OCI
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations
Total items that cannot be reclassified into profit or loss

(Note 8)

1,115

792

9,292

2,887

5,250

24,058

4,002

6,042

33,350

15,643

6,343

130,358

Items that can be reclassified into profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Cash flow hedges
Share of OCI of investments accounted for using the equity method

(59)
1,085

(54)

(492)

719

9,042
138,908

Total items that can be reclassified into profit or loss

16,669

7,008

Other comprehensive income (OCI)

20,671

13,050

172,258

¥43,538

¥42,194

$362,817

¥42,390

¥42,455

$353,250

1,148

(261)

9,567

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
Millions of yen
Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Balance as of April 1, 2013
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2015

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Treasury
stock

Retained
earnings

¥15,454

¥12,013

¥(193)

¥249,828
29,464

—

—

—

29,464
(7,497)

¥2,755
792
792

¥

—
5,250
5,250

(7)
0

214

(214)
(214)
3,333

—
5,250

1,115
1,115

2,887
2,887

—
15,454

—
12,013

(7)
(200)

(7,283)
272,009
22,587

—

—

—

22,587
(7,497)

(13)
0
(1,515)
399
—
¥15,454

(1,515)
¥10,498

(13)
¥(213)

(7,098)
¥287,498

Millions of yen
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Exchange difference
Remeasurements Total accumulated
on translation of
Cash flow
of defined
other comprehensive
foreign operations
hedges
benefit plans
income

Balance as of April 1, 2013
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2015

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Financial assets
Remeasurement
measured at fair
of defined benefit
value through OCI
obligations

¥

—

¥ 68

¥ 2,823

7,003
7,003

(54)
(54)

12,991
12,991

(214)
—
7,003

—
14

(214)
15,600

15,860
15,860

(59)
(59)

19,803
19,803

(399)
—
¥22,863

—
¥(45)

(399)
¥35,004

¥279,925
29,464
12,991
42,455
(7,497)
(7)
0
—
—
—
—
(7,504)
314,876
22,587
19,803
42,390
(7,497)
(13)
0
—
(1,515)
—
—
9,025
¥348,241

(399)
(399)
¥4,049

—
¥8,137

Minority
interests

Total
net assets

¥6,349
(320)
59
(261)
(277)

¥286,274
29,144
13,050
42,194
(7,774)
(7)
0
—
—

6,862
(4,708)

—
101
(7,680)
320,788
22,867
20,671
43,538
(7,631)
(13)
0
6,862
(6,223)

13
2,033
¥9,093

—
13
(6,992)
¥357,334

101
(176)
5,912
280
868
1,148
(134)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Balance as of April 1, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2015

Common
stock

Capital
surplus

Treasury
stock

Retained
earnings

$128,783

$100,108

$(1,667)

$2,266,742
188,225

—

—

—

188,225
(62,475)

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Financial assets
Remeasurement
measured at fair
of defined benefit
value through OCI
obligations

$27,775

$43,750

9,292
9,292

24,058
24,058

(108)
0
(12,625)
3,325
—
$128,783

(12,625)
$ 87,483

(108)
$(1,775)

(59,150)
$2,395,817

(3,325)
(3,325)
$33,742

—
$67,808

Minority
interests

Total
net assets

$49,267
2,333
7,233
9,567
(1,117)

57,183
(39,233)

$2,673,233
190,558
172,258
362,817
(63,592)
(108)
0
57,183
(51,858)

108
16,942
$75,775

—
108
(58,267)
$2,977,783

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Balance as of April 1, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the year
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasure stock
Sale of treasure stock
Changes from business combination
Purchase of non-controlling interests
Transfer of accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings
Other changes
Total transactions with owners
Balance as of March 31, 2015

Exchange difference
on translation of
foreign operations

Cash flow
hedges

$ 58,358

$117

$130,000

132,167
132,167

(492)
(492)

165,025
165,025

(3,325)
—
$190,525

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Remeasurements Total accumulated
of defined
other comprehensive
benefit plans
income

—
$(375)

(3,325)
$291,700

$2,623,967
188,225
165,025
353,250
(62,475)
(108)
0
—
(12,625)
—
—
75,208
$2,902,008

Financial Section

56

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2015

2014

2015

¥22,867

¥29,144

$190,558

27,271

24,626

227,258

11,825

10,319

98,542

763

1,897

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Depreciation and amortization
Income tax expense
Impairment losses

(Note 11)

Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses paid
Business structure improvement expenses

(750)

(579)

6,358
(6,250)

1,736

1,517

14,467

12,882

1,484

107,350

Share of profits of investments accounted for using the equity method

(3,431)

(2,478)

(28,592)

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables

(1,372)

(2,071)

(11,433)
(37,775)

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables other

(4,533)

1,629

(Increase) decrease in inventories

(3,646)

(288)

(30,383)

Increase (decrease) in trade payables

(5,847)

(1,432)

(48,725)

Increase (decrease) in retirement and severance benefits

(4,793)

(2,466)

(39,942)

1,712

1,802

14,267

54,684

63,104

455,700

Other
Subtotal
Interest and dividends received
Interest paid

3,350

3,163

27,917

(1,701)

(1,460)

(14,175)

Business structure improved expenses paid

(13,583)

—

(113,192)

Income taxes paid

(10,190)

(14,450)

(84,917)

Income taxes refund
Net cash provided by operating activities

1,449

—

12,075

34,009

50,357

283,408

(22,896)

(31,755)

(190,800)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Expenses for property, plant and equipment acquired
Income from sale of property, plant and equipment

1,125

539

9,375

Proceeds from redemption and sale of investments in securities

2,118

2,517

17,650

Purchase of investments in subsidiaries

(3,146)

—

(26,217)

Expenses for investment securities acquired

(2,887)

(626)

(24,058)

Payments into deposits paid in subsidiaries and affiliates
Proceeds from withdrawal of deposits paid in subsidiaries and affiliates
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

—

(7,000)

—

7,000

—

58,333

(3,572)

(774)

(29,767)

(22,258)

(37,099)

(185,483)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt

157

5,818

1,058

4,551

8,817

Payments on long-term debt

(4,370)

(4,617)

(36,417)

Purchase of shares of consolidated subsidiaries from non-controlling interest holders

(5,671)

—

(47,258)

Dividends paid to stockholders

Proceeds from long-term debt

1,308

(7,497)

(7,497)

(62,475)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

(134)

(277)

(1,117)

Other

(417)

(352)

(3,475)

(16,874)

(2,374)

(140,617)

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

6,468

2,790

53,900

1,345

13,674

11,208

87,652

73,978

730,433

¥88,997

¥87,652

$741,642

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

1. Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”).The date of transition to IFRS is April 1, 2013. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for the following significant items
• derivatives are measured at fair value;
• financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are measured at fair value;
• financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) are measured at fair value;
• defined benefit liabilities (assets) are the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets.

2. Basis of Financial Statement Translation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥120=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March
31, 2015. This translation should not be construed as a representation that all amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥26,308

¥20,877

$219,233

Work in process

17,715

13,874

147,625

Raw materials

17,886

15,467

149,050

¥61,909

¥50,218

$515,908

Finished and semi-finished goods

4. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, at cost as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 61,934

¥ 59,979

$ 516,117

Machinery and transportation equipment

90,665

80,864

755,542

Land

20,458

18,893

170,483

Buildings and structures

Construction in progress

6,139

9,119

51,158

¥179,196

¥168,855

$1,493,300

5. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Goodwill

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 5,105

¥3,384

$ 42,542

Software

2,557

2,305

21,308

Other

4,639

1,646

38,658

¥12,301

¥7,335

$102,508
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6. Income Taxes
The income tax expenses (benefits) reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 9,977

¥11,455

$83,142

1,848

(1,136)

15,400

¥11,825

¥10,319

$98,542

The “Act for Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 9 of 2015) and the “Act for Partial Amendment of the Local Tax
Act, etc.” (Act No. 2 of 2015) were promulgated on March 31, 2015, and in conjunction with this, the effective statutory tax rate used to
measure deferred tax assets and liabilities for the fiscal year under review was changed from the conventional rate of 35.4% to 32.8% for
the temporary differences expected to be realized or settled in the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2015 and to 32.1% for the temporary
differences expected to be realized or settled in the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2016 and thereafter.
Reconciliations between the effective statutory tax rate and the actual rate of tax borne are as follows:
Statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

2015

2014

35.4%

37.8%

1.4

1.1

Difference in statutory tax rates of foreign subsidiaries

(4.0)

(2.3)

Tax credit for R&D expenses

(2.6)

(4.2)

Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets

1.3

(6.3)

Adjustments to deferred tax assets and liabilities due to changes in tax rate

4.0

1.5

(1.4)

(1.5)

34.1%

26.1%

Other
Effective income tax rate

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2015
and 2014 are presented below:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 5,216

¥ 6,807

$ 43,467

2,703

2,893

22,525

Deferred tax assets:
Net defined benefit liability
Accrued bonus
Depreciation and amortization

2,544

2,931

21,200

Other

7,278

6,072

60,650

17,741

18,703

147,842

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net defined benefit assets

(3,218)

(1,811)

(26,817)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(1,916)

(1,827)

(15,967)

Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

(4,535)

(2,159)

(37,792)

(9,669)

(5,797)

(80,575)

¥ 8,072

¥12,906

$ 67,267

7. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Short-term loans payable and current portion of long-term loans payable as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Millions of yen

Short-term loans payable:
Current portion of long-term loans payable

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥27,300

¥23,713

$227,500

6,358

1,556

52,983

¥33,658

¥25,269

$280,483

Annual Report 2015

59

Financial Section

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

8th series, due 2016, interest 2.17%

¥ 9,993

¥ 9,988

$ 83,275

9th series, due 2022, interest 1.19%

9,964

9,959

83,033

Debentures:

Loans, principally from banks:
Maturing 2016–2018, interest 4.3% (average)
Total short-term and long-term debt (including current portion)

6,662

10,616

55,517

¥26,619

¥30,563

$221,825

¥60,277

¥55,832

$502,308

8. Retirement Benefit Plans
The Company and certain subsidiaries have funded and unfunded defined-benefit corporate pension plans and defined contribution pension plans to provide retirement and severance benefits to substantially all of their employees.
Fluctuations in the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets are as follows.
1) The present value of defined benefit obligations
Millions of yen

Balance at the beginning of the year
Service cost
Interest expenses

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥93,293

¥97,642

$777,442

3,547

3,882

29,558

999

1,082

8,325

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Actuarial difference arising from change in assumptions of population statistics
Actuarial difference arising from change in financial assumptions
Other
Benefits paid
Prior service cost
Other
Balance at the end of the fiscal year

(271)

—

3,590

(3,736)

(2,258)
29,917

(508)

(813)

(4,233)

(10,451)

(5,485)

(87,092)

—

(355)

—

1,115

1,076

9,292

¥91,314

¥93,293

$760,950

2) The fair value of plan assets
Millions of yen

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest income on plan assets

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥82,149

¥75,946

$684,575

929

965

7,742

6,593

3,573

54,942

4,304

4,040

35,867

(6,338)

(4,093)

(52,817)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:
Income from plan assets
Contributions by the Company
Benefits paid
Other
Balance at the end of the fiscal year

425

1,718

3,542

¥88,062

¥82,149

$733,850

The following amounts related to defined benefit plans were recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Millions of yen

Present value of defined benefit obligations (funded)
Fair value of plan assets
Funding status
Present value of defined benefit obligations (unfunded)
Net assets (liabilities) in consolidated statement of financial position
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥(85,628)

¥(82,702)

$(713,567)

88,062

82,149

733,850

2,434

(553)

20,283

(5,686)

(10,591)

(47,383)

¥ (3,252)

¥(11,144)

$ (27,100)
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9. Stock
Common stock
(Issued shares)

Treasury stock

Balance as of March 31, 2013

208,364,913

117,316

Balance as of March 31, 2014

208,364,913

122,189

Balance as of March 31, 2015

208,364,913

128,401

10. Other Income and Expenses
(1) Other income
Millions of yen

Compensation income (Note)
Royalty income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other
Total

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 7,464

¥ 7,260

$62,200

1,626

1,532

13,550

380

158

3,167

2,257

3,240

18,808

¥11,727

¥12,190

$97,725

Note: The compensation income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 represents the amount received from Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated as a compensation for the
lost income and certain other additional costs due to the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station accident.
The compensation income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 represents the amount received from Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated as a compensation for the
lost income, certain other additional costs and loss of property caused by the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station accident.

(2) Other expenses
Millions of yen

Business structure improvement expenses (Note)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥12,882

¥1,484

$107,350

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

966

1,069

8,050

Impairment losses

763

1,897

6,358

Provision for surcharge
Other
Total

500

—

4,167

4,423

2,054

36,858

¥19,534

¥6,504

$162,783

Note: Business structure improvement expenses included extra retirement payment, outplacement support expenses, etc. associated with the implementation of the voluntary retirement
and outplacement support program.

11. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

Japan

Production facilities and other

Machinery and equipment, and other

In conjunction with the decision to transfer business, the carrying amount was reduced to the recoverable amount, and the amount of
such reduction of ¥763 million ($6,358 thousand) was recorded as an impairment loss in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
income. The recoverable amount is calculated at fair value less disposal expenses. Fair value less disposal expenses is based on the prospective sales price, and is classified as Level 3 in terms of IFRS fair value hierarchy.
For the year ended March 31, 2014, certain consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

China, other

Production facilities and other

Machinery and equipment, and other

As future cash flows that had been projected in the initial business plan are no longer expected to be generated, the carrying amount was
reduced to the recoverable amount, and the amount of such reduction of ¥1,897 million was recorded as an impairment loss in “Other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of income. The recoverable amount is calculated based on value in use. Value in use is calculated
by discounting future cash flows to the present value assuming pre-tax weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 6.0%.
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12. Financial Income and Expenses
(1) Financial income
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥ 468

¥ 352

$ 3,900

—

16

—

282

211

2,350

Interest income:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Dividends:
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Gain (loss) on securities and other investment, net:
Financial assets measured at FVTPL

260

20

2,167

2,688

1,318

22,400

106

20

883

¥3,804

¥1,937

$31,700

Foreign exchange gains
Other financial income
Total

(2) Financial expenses
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2015

2014

2015

¥1,736

¥1,517

$14,467

Interest expenses:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Gain (loss) on securities and other investment, net:
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Total

33

4

275

¥1,769

¥1,521

$14,742

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments are as follows:
Millions of yen

2015

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2014

2015

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

¥60,277

¥61,224

¥55,832

¥56,752

$502,308

$510,200

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost:
Bonds and borrowings

14. Contingency
The Hitachi Chemical Group is under investigation by the competition authorities in Japan, Europe, the U.S., and several other countries and
regions on suspicion of anticompetitive practices in aluminum electrolytic capacitors. The Company booked provisions sufficient to cover a
reasonably foreseeable amount for the likely possibility that surcharges are levied.

15. Subsequent Events
At the Board of Directors meeting held on May 28, 2015, the Board decided to transfer a portion of the shares of Hitachi Chemical Co.,
(Taiwan) Ltd. , a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and a stock transfer agreement was concluded on May 29, 2015.
Hitachi Chemical (Taiwan) is a subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring boards and slitting and marketing of photosensitive dry films for printed wiring boards. With the objective of strengthening and expanding printed wiring board operation
in cooperation with Taiwan PCB Techvest Co., Ltd. (TPT), which is engaged in business in Taiwan and on the Chinese mainland, the
Company decided to separate and transfer the business of photosensitive dry films for printed wiring boards from Hitachi Chemical
(Taiwan). On that basis, the Company decided to transfer 80% of the stock of Hitachi Chemical (Taiwan) to TPT.
Following the above decision, the assets and liabilities of Hitachi Chemical (Taiwan) in the printed wiring board business were classified as
held for sale. In regard to the timing of the stock transfer, it is planned for November 2015, and the effect on the consolidated financial
statements has not yet been determined.
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16. Business Combination
Fiscal year under review (fiscal year ended March 31, 2015)
(1) Business combination through acquisition of shares
On January 16, 2015, the Company acquired additional shares of its affiliate accounted for by the equity method, CSB Battery Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “CSB”), and thereby turned it into its subsidiary.
CSB manufactures and sells industrial lead-acid batteries for various applications including uninterruptible power supply (UPS), and operates business on a global scale through its marketing bases in China, Taiwan region, the U.S. and the Netherlands, as well as manufacturing
bases in China, Taiwan region, Vietnam and the Philippines.
The Company had decided to turn CSB into its subsidiary by increasing its equity stake and becoming the majority owner, in order to
utilize CSB’s marketing and manufacturing bases as well as sales channels, and in turn, enhance and expand the Group’s energy storage
devices business on a global scale.
(2) Percentage of voting rights acquired
Percentage of voting rights owned before acquisition date

27.1%

Percentage of voting rights additionally acquired

33.7%

Percentage of voting rights after acquisition

60.8%

(3) Consideration for acquisition and goodwill
Cash paid in connection with acquisition of shares
Due diligence and other expenses

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

¥7,015

$58,458

690

5,750

Total cost of the acquisition

¥7,705

$64,208

Goodwill

¥ 996

$ 8,300

(4) Impact on consolidated financial statements
Revenue and net income on and after the date of acquisition of CSB recorded in the consolidated statement of income amounted to ¥7,245
million ($60,375 thousand) and ¥163 million ($1,358 thousand), respectively.
Revenue and net income in the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year under review would have been ¥553,686 million
($4,614,050 thousand) and ¥24,646 million ($205,383 thousand), respectively, if the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the period.
(5) Additional acquisition
On March 18, 2015, the Company additionally acquired 28.7% of CSB’s shares in order to further enhance and expand the Group’s energy
storage devices business. As a result, the percentage of voting rights held by the Group became 89.4%.
The consideration for additional acquisition amounted to ¥5,671 million ($47,258 thousand) and acquisition-related expenses amounted
to ¥552 million ($4,600 thousand), totaling ¥6,223 million ($51,858 thousand); the difference between this amount and the reduced carrying amount of non-controlling interest in the amount of ¥4,708 million ($39,233 thousand), which was 1,515 million ($12,625 thousand),
decreased the capital surplus.
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17. Segment Information
The Company’s reportable segments are the constituent units of our business, for which separate financial information is available, and
whose operating results are reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors of the Company to determine the allocation of management
resources and assess their performance.
Based on the above, according to the degree of product processing, the Company determines two reportable segments, namely categorizing materials as “Functional Materials Segment” and the components and parts as “Advanced Components and Systems Segment” and
the main products of each reportable segment are provided on the section of “Hitachi Chemical Products and Services” of this annual
report.
Reportable segment information:
Millions of yen
Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

¥

¥525,061

2015

Revenues from outside customers

¥275,769

¥249,292

¥525,061

9,071

2,911

11,982

(11,982)

—

Total

¥284,840

¥252,203

¥537,043

¥(11,982)

¥525,061

Segment profit (loss)

¥ 23,494

¥

¥

¥ 29,226

Intersegment revenue

—

5,846

¥ 29,340

Financial income

—

—

—

—

3,804

Financial expenses

—

—

—

—

(1,769)

Equity in profit (loss) of affiliates
Income before income taxes

—
¥

—

—
¥

—

—
¥

(114)

—

3,431

—

¥

—

¥ 34,692

¥

—

¥ 27,271

—

763

Eliminations

Consolidated

¥

—

¥488,725

(12,197)

—

Other items:
Depreciation and amortization

¥ 13,574

¥ 13,697

¥ 27,271

476

287

763

Impairment losses

Millions of yen
Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems

Total

2014

Revenues from outside customers

¥261,179

¥227,546

¥488,725

10,452

1,745

12,197

Total

¥271,631

¥229,291

¥500,922

¥(12,197)

¥488,725

Segment profit (loss)

¥ 25,633

¥ 10,966

¥ 36,599

¥

¥ 36,569

Financial income

—

—

—

—

1,937

Financial expenses

—

—

—

—

(1,521)

Intersegment revenue

Equity in profit (loss) of affiliates
Income before income taxes

—
¥

—

—
¥

—

—
¥

(30)

—

2,478

—

¥

—

¥ 39,463

¥

—

¥ 24,626

—

1,897

Other items:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses
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¥ 12,044

¥ 24,626

1,602

295

1,897
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2015

Revenues from outside customers

$2,298,075

$2,077,433

$4,375,508

75,592

24,258

99,850

(99,850)

—

Total

$2,373,667

$2,101,692

$4,475,358

$(99,850)

$4,375,508

Segment profit (loss)

$ 195,783

$

$

$ 243,550

Intersegment revenue

$

—

48,717

$ 244,500

Financial income

—

—

—

—

31,700

Financial expenses

—

—

—

—

(14,742)

Equity in profit (loss) of affiliates
Income before income taxes

—
$

—

—
$

—

—
$

(950)

$4,375,508

—

28,592

—

$

—

$ 289,100

$

—

$ 227,258

—

6,358

Other items:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses

$ 113,117

$ 114,142

$ 227,258

3,967

2,392

6,358

Geographic information:
Millions of yen
Japan

Asia

Other areas

Total

2015

Net sales

¥242,914

¥239,609

¥42,538

¥525,061

Net property, plant and equipment

¥100,730

¥ 80,572

¥10,195

¥191,497

Japan

Asia

Millions of yen
Other areas

Total

2014

Net sales

¥239,064

¥215,567

¥34,094

¥488,725

Net property, plant and equipment

¥101,119

¥ 65,724

¥ 9,347

¥176,190

Japan

Asia

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Other areas

Total

2015

Net sales

$2,024,283

$1,996,742

$354,483

$4,375,508

Net property, plant and equipment

$ 839,417

$ 671,433

$ 84,958

$1,595,808
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FILED UNDER THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND EXCHANGE ACT IN JAPAN (Translation)
NOTE TO READERS:
Following is an English translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report filed under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan.
This report is presented merely as supplemental information.
(TRANSLATION)
Independent Auditor’s Report
(filed under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in Japan)
June 19, 2015

To Mr. Kazuyuki Tanaka
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director of Hitachi Chemical
Erst & Young ShinNihon LLC
Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant:

Masami Katakura

Designated Unlimited Liability Partner,
Engagement Partner,
Certified Public Accountant:

Seiji Kuzunuki

<Audit of Financial Statements>
Pursuant to the first paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited the consolidated financial
statements included in the Financial Section, namely, the consolidated balance sheet of Hitachi Chemical (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the fiscal year from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015, and the related notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, pursuant to the provisions of Article 93 of Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of
Consolidated Financial Statements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
<Audit of Internal Control>
Pursuant to the second paragraph of Article 193-2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, we have audited management’s report on
internal control over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2015.
Management’s Responsibility for the Report on Internal Control
The Company’s management is responsible for designing and operating effective internal control over financial reporting and for the preparation and fair presentation of its report on internal control in accordance with assessment standards for internal control over financial
reporting generally accepted in Japan. There is a possibility that misstatements may not be completely prevented or detected by internal
control over financial reporting.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s report on internal control based on our internal control audit. We conducted
our internal control audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether management’s report on internal control is free from material misstatement.
An internal control audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the results of the assessment of internal control
over financial reporting in management’s report on internal control. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the significance of effects on reliability of financial reporting. An internal control audit includes examining representations on the scope, procedures and results of the assessment of internal control over financial reporting made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of management’s report on internal control.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Audit Opinion
In our opinion, management’s report on internal control referred to above, which represents that the internal control over financial reporting
of the Company as of March 31, 2015 is effectively maintained, presents fairly, in all material respects, the results of the assessment of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with assessment standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted
in Japan.
Interest
Our firm and the engagement partners do not have any interest in the Company for which disclosure is required under the provisions of the
Certified Public Accountants Act.
(The above represents a translation, for convenience only, of the original report issued in the Japanese language.)
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